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DOING THINGS
WITH HEART.
At Ozcare we like to think we do things with heart.
And it’s important that we do, since for the past 20 years we’ve been helping the people in our
society who need it most with a range of aged care, disability care, nursing, health and community
support services.
The people we care for are seniors, veterans, carers, people living with dementia, disadvantaged
Australians, people living with a disability, those with a mental illness or health condition, the homeless,
women and children experiencing domestic violence, and people facing drug and alcohol addiction.
We give them the support they need to continue staying in their own homes, or provide a warm and
welcoming home with 24 hour care. We enable them to live free from domestic violence, to find and
maintain a permanent home, to make the most out of their lives and achieve their goals and dreams.
It takes a special kind of person, and organisation, to make this possible. Our 3,000 staff are
committed to providing our clients with the highest standard of care. They go over and above to
service more than 15,000 individuals with 320 services from over 60 locations.
Our staff love to make a difference to someone’s day. When they leave a client with a smile on their
face they know they’ve done a good job.

GUIDING PRINCIPLES
Ozcare was established as a special work of St Vincent de Paul Society Queensland. The Society, as a lay Catholic
organisation, aspires to live the gospel message by serving Christ in the poor with love, respect, justice, hope and
joy, and by working to shape a more just and compassionate society.

Our Purpose
Our purpose is to improve our clients’ quality of life
through the delivery of personalised health and human
services in the spirit of the St Vincent de Paul Society.

Our Values
Our values form the basis of our culture and guide
everything we do.
Commitment – Loyalty in service to our purpose
and values.

Compassion – Welcoming and serving all with
understanding and without judgement.
Respect – Service to all regardless of belief, ethnic or
social background, health and gender.
Integrity – Promoting, maintaining and adhering to our
purpose and values.
Empathy – Establishing relationships based on respect
and trust.
Courage – Encouraging spiritual growth, welcoming
innovation and giving hope for the future.
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OUR PEOPLE.
We are proud to employ nearly 3,000 staff and be assisted by 400 volunteers at Ozcare.
They are part of a care team who work together to ensure that every single aspect of a client’s care is considered;
from volunteers, carers, support workers, nurses, dementia specialists, allied health professionals, and hospitality
staff to the wonderful administrators, professionals and management who support them.
Our employees have big hearts. They love making a difference to someone’s day and leaving them with a smile on
their face.
When dealing with Ozcare, people can expect our employees to deliver the best care possible. They can expect that
our employees will go over and above and that’s because all of the staff that work here at Ozcare, work here because
they care.

OUR PEOPLE
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NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

At Ozcare, we are focused on helping people to
achieve their goals and live well. Whether it’s
providing exceptional aged or disability care in
the community to help people stay in their own
homes for as long as they can, or providing care
that makes it feel like they’ve gone from one
home to another in our aged care facilities, to
providing compassionate guidance and support
to someone in need who is putting their life
back together.
For us it is about bringing meaning and purpose
to the lives of the people we care for which we
believe is central to inner happiness and
well-being.

600

1996

2,200

2016

2,885

2017

No matter what service you encounter, Ozcare
has a real family feel to it which perhaps
explains why we have so many staff who stay
with us long-term.

YEARS OF SERVICE ACHIEVEMENTS FOR 2016-17
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we care
with heart
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OZHEART.
The Ozheart program commenced in February 2017 and is designed to recognise Ozcare employees who embody
the spirit of our organisation:
• Constantly going the extra mile
• Providing exceptional care or doing exceptional work
• Displaying a positive attitude to health and wellbeing
• Helping their colleagues and other departments
We accept nominations from clients, Ozcare employees, and the public at any time through the Ozheart nomination
form located on our website.
Please join us in celebrating our Ozheart winners for the 2016-2017 financial year.

VIVIAN WEBLEY

FEB

An Ozheart because…
• Vivian is an advocate for the holistic welfare of her
clients, doing everything she can to see they receive
the best care possible
• Vivian is enthusiastic and always willing to give 100%
• Vivian is dedicated to making a very big difference in
the lives of others

FEB

OZHEART
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LEAH TASKER

MAR

An Ozheart because…
• Leah is a hard worker who is always being ready to
have a laugh
• Leah is passionate about always providing the best
possible menu and food for our residents
• Leah is tenacious about creating food that looks
appetising for people on a texture modified diet

MAR

KERRY FROST
An Ozheart because…
• Kerry encourages others to recognise their own
strengths and abilities
• Kerry has an innate caring quality and a willingness to
do whatever is required to do the job
• Kerry is focused on giving the people he supports the
best day they can possibly have

APR

APR
ROB MURRAY

MAY

An Ozheart because…
• Rob has his clients’ best interests at heart and he
interacts with them with compassion and respect
• Rob arrives each day with a positive attitude and he
loves the work that he does
• Rob always finds the time for residents, even if he’s
busy and he generally is, he always finds the time

MAY

TED SHEEHAN
An Ozheart because…
• Ted goes above and beyond what his job calls for and
he takes care of everybody
• Ted is very caring to each person, all who have
different needs
• Ted is an all-rounder; he’s kind and compassionate
and he really thinks about what the clients want

JUN

JUN
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CHAIRMAN’S REPORT.
On behalf of the board of Ozcare, it is my great
pleasure to present our annual report for 2017.
The theme of this year’s report is ‘doing things with
heart’, and it never ceases to amaze me how big of
an effect we can have on another person in a very
short space of time. Small acts of kindness and
always putting forward the best version of ourselves
can have a profound impact on others, and make a
big difference to the lives of those we care for.
The clients featured in this report are shining
examples of how the exceptional care and support
we provide can serve to bring out the best in
others, in some cases helping people to turn their
lives around.
I am proud to chair an organisation that recognises
the accomplishments of its employees, and
celebrates their successes. The shared triumphs
at Ozcare drive motivation and help to foster a
strong culture of kind and caring behaviour,
and accountability.

THE YEAR IN REVIEW
This year has held a number of significant events for
our organisation.
In September 2016, St Vincent de Paul became the sole
member of Ozcare. We acknowledged this relationship
through our new guiding principles which reflect the
mission of the Society, and by recognising our origins
as A Special Work of St Vincent de Paul Society
Queensland.
We continue to enjoy a strong working relationship
with the Society and will continue to align with the
mission and vision of St Vincent de Paul Society
Queensland to work towards greater harmonisation.
In May this year, we were sad to farewell Father Keith
Turnbull, Vincentian Father and Founding Chairman of
Ozcare who passed away at the age of 88.

Father Keith held the position of founding chairman and
director of Ozcare for 14 years. He was well known for
his service to the Gold Coast community, particularly in
the establishment of aged care and respite services,
and his service to the Catholic Church.
Father Keith received an Order of Australia award for
his significant contribution and in honour of Father
Keith’s work, Ozcare renamed Ozanam Villa Labrador
as Keith Turnbull Place in 2009.
Father Keith was an absolute visionary. He will be
remembered as someone who always put the needs of
others before his own, something we all aspire to
at Ozcare.

LOOKING AHEAD
We’ve had another successful year at Ozcare and our
astute investment in the expansion of our services has
us placed in a solid position for the future.
Earlier this year we opened our new extension at
Ozanam Villa Clontarf and our multi-million dollar aged
care development in Hervey Bay had its grand opening in
October. Similar developments are underway in
Toowoomba and Mackay.
Ozcare is proud to be an approved National Disability
Insurance Scheme (NDIS) provider and we look forward
to growing our disability services as NDIS continues to
roll out around Queensland.
We are planning a renewed focus in our social inclusion
services on outcomes measurement. Focusing on
outcomes ensures we are supporting clients to achieve
their goals, and working collaboratively with them to put
measures in place so they can move on with their life.
In addition to focusing on the growth and performance
of our staff and services, it is also critical that we
continue to stay at the forefront of technology
advancements to enhance the delivery of care and
support for our clients.
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is a qualified lawyer who holds an MBA from the
University of Queensland.
I would like thank my fellow directors for their valued
contribution this year and their dedication to the good
governance of Ozcare. Your wisdom and guidance is
critical in ensuring Ozcare continues to grow and deliver
outstanding service to the Queensland community.

THE HEART OF OZCARE
Central to the success of Ozcare is the people who work
for this organisation. Our employees do a fabulous job
supporting people in the community to live well.
Their dedication to make a difference is something to be
marvelled at.

THE BOARD
We started 2017 by bidding farewell to outgoing board
member, Bishop Brian V. Finnigan. Bishop Brian retired
as Auxiliary Bishop of the Catholic Archdiocese of
Brisbane and also retired from our board of directors.
I feel very privileged to have worked with Bishop Brian and
I wish to extend my thanks and appreciation for his
wisdom and spiritual guidance to Ozcare over his six year
term. Bishop Brian contributed to our Ozcare calendar
each year with his annual blessing and has kindly agreed
to continue to feature in our yearly calendar.
In January we welcomed Kathy Sadler to our board of
directors. Kathy came to us with a wealth of experience
in aged care and disability services. Previously board
member and chair of Mercy Community Services, Kathy

From cleaning someone’s home to a standard that’s
good enough for their own mum or providing expert
clinical care, to helping someone who has lost their way
find purpose and meaning, the jobs at Ozcare are as
varied as the clients we serve but they are all
approached with the same attitude and that is one
of care.
On behalf of the board of Ozcare, I extend my heartfelt
thanks and appreciation to every employee for the
wonderful job you do. I would also like to acknowledge
the invaluable work of our volunteers, which greatly
benefits our clients and assists our staff.
To the leadership team; thank you for another great
year. The future of Ozcare is in good hands with you
at the helm.

Ron Sullivan
- Chairman -

>>

O U R E M P LOY E E S D O A FA B U LO US J O B S U P P O RT I N G
PEOPLE IN THE COMMUNITY TO LIVE WELL
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER’S REPORT.
This year has been another year of change with
the introduction of the National Disability
Insurance Scheme (NDIS) and portability of
home care packages following on from last
year’s introduction of consumer directed care.
This has led to a large number of new entrants
to the industry and competitors spending large
amounts on advertising.
I am proud to say that Ozcare has remained
resilient during this period of change. The strength
of our brand, the spirit of our people and our
foresight to prepare for these challenges, and
adapt and change as necessary, has meant we
have retained our strong position in the market.

OUR PEOPLE
Ozcare exists to care and support those in need in the
Queensland community. We are driven by our purpose
and values, which are embodied by the 3,000 staff that
work for this organisation. Each and every staff member
that is employed by Ozcare works here because they
truly care.
Their ability to recognise the unique needs of each client,
respect their personal wishes and adhere to the
business constraints placed upon them while they go
about their work is no easy task.
It is this high level of professional, person centred care
that helps to differentiate us from our competitors and
sees Ozcare highly regarded in the community.

>>

The introduction of our new branch structure in
community care, and the key leadership role of branch
managers, will enable us to achieve more aligned and
efficient operations and see all of our services working
closer together.
Investment in our leaders to cultivate behaviours and
attributes that support organisational goals and desired
culture will be key in moving forward. At Ozcare, we want
to lead by example and nurture a warm, inclusive culture
that goes the extra mile to deliver exceptional care.

INVESTING IN CARE
The expectations of aged care consumers are shifting.
Many of the people currently in our care came through
the war and great depression and have modest
demands. The next generation to need aged care will
be the baby boomers. They are starting to reach their
70’s and have heightened expectations of quality of life
and care.
We are preparing for this generational shift and we
will meet these elevated expectations of care through
the adoption of technology in our services and
forward planning.
This year has seen the culmination of the roll out of our
mobility solutions in operations, with our aged care
facilities now all using PeoplePoint Clinical. Capitalising
on technology in our services enables more efficient and
accurate documentation, and the reduction in paperwork
allows for more time to be spent on direct care.

OUR VISION IS FOR OZCARE TO BE THE LEADING
S E R V I C E P R O V I D E R O F I N T E G R AT E D A G E D C A R E
SERVICES IN AUSTRALIA
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The implementation of a new rostering system in our
aged care facilities has seen demand based rosters
that encourage staff to work across different wings and
shifts in an effort to standardise our workforce policy
and operate more proficiently without compromising
on the care we deliver.
By far the biggest investment this year has been the
construction of our impressive new 154 bed aged care
facility in Hervey Bay. The talk of Wide Bay for a number
of months, this highly anticipated facility sets a new
benchmark for aged care.
We understand that privacy is a desirable feature for
residents moving into an aged care facility. This will be
of even greater importance to baby boomers. It is for
this reason that we made the decision to exclusively
offer single ensuited rooms with private balconies in
our new facility at Hervey Bay and future developments
planned for Toowoomba and Mackay.
Furthermore, we have implemented a construction
schedule over the next couple of years to convert
double rooms with shared ensuites in our existing
facilities to single rooms with private ensuites.
It is our intention that future Ozcare developments
include residential aged care and independent living units
to allow for integrated aged care. Ensuring our aged care
facilities are co-located with retirement villages will allow
Ozcare to offer the full spectrum of aged care options to
support clients as they move along the care continuum.

STRATEGIC DIRECTION
This year we set our strategic direction for the next five
years with approval from the board.
Our vision is for Ozcare to be the leading service provider
of integrated aged care services in Australia.
We will achieve our vision through the implementation
of a range of planned initiatives to attain our strategic
goals of:
• Service Excellence and Trusted Brand
• Growth
• Financial Security
It is an exciting time at Ozcare and I look forward to
guiding the organisation into the next chapter as we
work to achieve our goals and realise our vision.

THANK YOU
I would like to take this opportunity to thank the
people around me that work hard to ensure that
Ozcare is successful.
Thank you to the board, and Chairman Ron Sullivan,
for your continued support and sound advice.
Thank you to my leadership team. I truly believe we are
only as good as the people we surround ourselves with,
and your expertise, commitment and passion for
Ozcare is what propels our organisation forward.
To our employees and volunteers, thank you for your
dedication, hard work and commitment to both Ozcare
and our clients.
We look forward to a bright future working together
to deliver exceptional care.

Anthony Godfrey

- Chief Executive Officer -
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OUR SERVICES.
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O Z C A R E W A S E S TA B L I S H E D A S A S P E C I A L W O R K O F T H E
S T V I N C E N T D E PAU L S O C I E T Y Q U E E N S L A N D I N 1 9 9 6.

With 46 services in 25 locations and 600 staff, we
started our journey; to help seniors and people with
disability stay in their own homes as long as
possible, to help the disadvantaged get back on
their feet, to provide respite services to carers
looking after loved ones, and to offer homely aged
care facilities to our oldest Australians.
Today we offer a wide range of services to help
Queenslanders of all ages. We proudly deliver more
than 320 services to 15,000 clients, with the support
of nearly 3,000 staff and 400 volunteers.
We are committed to going the extra mile to make a
positive difference in the lives of others through the
delivery of person centred care.
This means working with our clients, their carers,
and families, to provide care that’s right for their
unique situation. We partner with our clients to
understand their needs and help them to identify
personal goals. We then tailor our support
accordingly to ensure our clients remain doing the
things they can, while working with them to achieve
things they hadn’t thought possible.

Our hugely diverse range of services are
completely flexible and can be changed as
individual needs change. We also help people
transition between our services as they move
along the care continuum.
At Ozcare, all of our clients benefit from more than
20 years of experience, and our professional staff
who strive to deliver exceptional care.

NUMBER OF SERVICES
46

1996

210

2006

320

2017

we make
a difference
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Blair, Client with Dee, Care Assistant Ozcare North Lakes

Aged Care
Home Care
Aged Care Facilities
Day Respite Centres
Retirement Village
Dementia Care
NDIS Disability & Health Services

Community Support Services
Homeless & Housing Services
Goodna Integrated Family Support
Women’s Refuges
Kids Bed Wetting
Drug & Alcohol Services
Mental Health Services
The Bush Connection
Immunisation Services

11
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AGED CARE

Gordon, Client, with Lorna, Care Assistant, Ozcare North Lakes

HOME CARE
We help people stay in their own homes for as long as possible with our range of home care services.
We are committed to delivering consistent care so we make sure our clients continue to see familiar faces
for each of their appointments. This way clients get to know their carers and feel comfortable with them
and we get to know our clients and their individual needs.
We are focused on delivering person centred care which is why we partner with our clients, their carers
and loved ones to develop tailored care plans that support personal needs, preferences and values.

AGED CARE
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we help people
stay at home
Services
• Personal Care
Support with everyday tasks such as showering
or getting dressed
• Meal Preparation
Help to prepare healthy and nutritious meals

NUMBER OF CLIENTS WHO RECEIVED
SERVICES FROM COMMONWEALTH
HOME SUPPORT PROGRAMME (CHSP)
12,290

2016

18,820

2017

• Domestic Assistance
General housework such as cleaning, washing
clothes, or stocking the fridge
• Transport
Getting to appointments or around your community
• Social Support
Maintain an active social life in and outside
your home
• Nursing at Home
Nursing services such as wound care, palliative
care, medication management and continence
• Allied Health at Home
Physiotherapists, dietitians, and other health
professionals that come to your home
• Respite Care
Care during the day or night in your home to relieve
your regular carer

2017

1,604
NUMBER OF CLIENTS
WHO RECEIVE A HOME
CARE PACKAGE
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OZCARE HERVEY BAY
In October we opened the doors to our highly anticipated new facility in Hervey Bay. Our impressive facility offers 154
single rooms with private balconies and ensuites, and two secure wings for people living with dementia.
A lot of thought has gone into making it feel relaxed and home-like by incorporating a number of private areas for
residents to enjoy with visiting family and friends.
Home to The Pier Café, also open to the public, the centrally located coffee shop is next to a children’s playground. Ample
outdoor space allows for lawn bowls, bocce, croquet, putt putt, a giant chess set, vege gardens and numerous outdoor
sitting areas, with walking paths set amongst extensive landscaped gardens.
We know our new facility will be loved for many years to come!

AGED CARE
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AGED CARE FACILITIES
Ozcare has eleven modern residential aged
care facilities to choose from throughout
Queensland, from tropical Port Douglas in
the far north to sunny Burleigh Heads on the
Gold Coast.
We are very proud to offer permanent care,
residential respite for short term stays, and
specialised dementia care in secure wings.
Our team of nurses, carers, allied health
professionals, cooks, and support service
staff provide round the clock, personalised
care, as well as a full calendar of activities
and social events.
We go the extra mile to learn about our
residents, their family, interests, strengths
and abilities to ensure we are delivering the
best care possible. Our residents say we
make aged care living feel like home.

2017

1,577
NUMBER OF RESIDENTIAL
AGED CARE BED LICENCES

feels like
home
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Amber Thwaites, Cook, Ozcare Day Respite Centre Burleigh Heads with Margaret Donnelly, Client

DAY RESPITE CENTRES
Our eight day respite centres throughout Queensland
offer clients the opportunity to get out of the house, meet
new people, enjoy a range of activities and have a fun day
out. It also provides carers the opportunity to complete
chores, attend appointments, go to work or take time out
for themselves.
Our day respite centres are friendly, warm and inclusive.
They offer something for everyone; whether you like to sit
and chat over a cup of tea, play cards, do knitting or craft,
go on outings, or join in a sing-a-long.
Our cooks provide a delicious morning tea and lunch, and
cater for all dietary requirements. Most of our day respite
centres offer transport to and from home to help people
get to our centres.

NUMBER OF CLIENTS
WHO ATTEND DAY RESPITE
1,181

2016

1,302

2017

Dementia Services
Our day respite centres at Clontarf, Burleigh Heads
(Gold Coast), and Townsville provide additional
support to people living with dementia, including
extended hours for carers to pursue work or study.

AGED CARE
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affordable
retirement living
RETIREMENT VILLAGE
Currimundi Gardens Retirement Village on the Sunshine Coast offers a relaxed coastal lifestyle, where residents can
focus on enjoying their retirement and the benefits of living in a small close-knit community.
Our one and two bedroom units have been architecturally designed to offer maximum privacy while taking advantage
of breezes and sunlight. All 37 units offer maintenance-free living, set in fully landscaped gardens.

Co-located with Ozcare Caroline Chishom Aged Care Facility
Co-located with Caroline Chisholm Aged Care Facility, Currimundi Gardens offers supportive ageing in place, which is
becoming increasingly desirable to older people when looking to move into a retirement village.
This is particularly the case with couples where one may need to transition into an aged care facility; being in a
co-located village means that partners are close by.
Additionally, residents have access to a wide range of services at an extra charge, including dinner at the aged care
facility, hairdressing services and home care services.
Village residents operate a social club and organise a range of activities including games, happy hour, a knitting club,
and weekly shopping trips.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

DEMENTIA CARE
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live well
with ozcare
We are proud to be a care provider that offers specialist dementia support through all stages for people living with
dementia, their carers and families.
Our trained and experienced staff can help navigate the challenges of living with dementia with services for in-home,
respite and permanent care that can be changed as needs change.

Dementia Advisory & Support Service (DASS)
Our specially trained dementia advisors help people living with dementia and their carers to develop skills and
knowledge to help live at home with an improved quality of life for as long as possible.

Dementia Home Care
We help people living with dementia live at home for longer with our suite of home care services, delivered by our highly
skilled, friendly staff who are experienced in caring for people with dementia.

Dementia Day Respite Care
Our eight day respite centres cater for people living with dementia to help them enjoy a fun, social outing while carers
can take a break, run errands, meet friends, study or go to work.

Dementia Residential Respite
Clients can move temporarily into our dementia wings at one of our eleven aged care facilities.

Dementia Aged Care Facility
We cater for people of all stages of dementia and all
ages. Our aged care facilities are homely places, and
our dementia wings have been designed to cater for
the unique needs of people living with dementia.

Wendy, Allied Health Assistant, Ozcare Robina with Barry, Client

NUMBER OF CLIENTS
WHO RECEIVED DASS
1,344

2016

2,032

2017

NDIS, DISABILITY & HEALTH SERVICES
19
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We help people achieve their goals with our personalised services for people with disability and health conditions.
We focus on abilities and strengths to help people complete everyday activities and increase independence.
Ozcare is a registered National Disability Insurance Scheme (NDIS) provider, and we also provide Queensland
Community Care Services (QCCS).

NDIS
Our experienced staff provide an extensive range of supports under the NDIS to those regions in Queensland
where the NDIS has begun.

Disability & Health Services
We provide the support people need to live well with our services for people with disability or health
conditions, who aren’t eligible for the NDIS.
We offer a diverse range of services both in the home and in the local community, and tailor care to
unique needs.

NUMBER OF CLIENTS
WHO RECEIVED QCCS
5,222

2017

2017

281
NUMBER OF CLIENTS
WHO RECEIVED NDIS

Malcolm, Client with Sue, Care Assistant, Ozcare Gold Coast

20
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COMMUNITY SUPPORT SERVICES
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Our wide range of support services help thousands of Queenslanders each year address issues of
homelessness, domestic violence, drug and alcohol addiction, health and wellbeing.
Our staff work alongside clients and their families to help them achieve goals, providing support every
step of the way.

Homeless & Housing Services
• Homeless Hostels
Accommodation and support for homeless
men over 18 years old in Bundaberg, Cairns,
Mackay, Mount Isa, Rockhampton, South
Brisbane, Toowoomba and Townsville
• Family Accommodation Program
Houses/apartments for families who are
homeless in Cairns, Dalby, Gold Coast,
Ipswich and Toowoomba
• Maria House
Four units and one house for crisis
accommodation for women and their
children in Townsville who are homeless
• Accommodation for Homeless Singles
and Couples
Accommodation and support for homeless
singles and couples in Ipswich to find
permanent accommodation

2,463 70,761

• Assistance with Care and Housing
Help for older people who are homeless or
at risk of homelessness to find housing
• Homestay Program
Support to help people maintain their
tenancy in Cairns, Rockhampton,
Gladstone, Biloela and Moura
• Homeless Outreach & Resident
Support Programs
Support for seniors and people living with
a disability who are homeless, at risk of
homelessness or living in shared
accommodation to access a range of
health and community care services in
Cairns, Gold Coast, Ipswich, Toowoomba
and Townsville

655

18,559

NUMBER OF
PEOPLE WE
SUPPORTED IN
OUR HOSTELS

NUMBER OF
BED NIGHTS
PROVIDED BY
OUR HOSTELS

NUMBER OF
FAMILIES WE
SUPPORTED IN
OUR FAMILY
ACCOMMODATION
SERVICES

NUMBER OF
BED NIGHTS
PROVIDING BY
OUR FAMILY
ACCOMMODATION
SERVICES

2017

2017

2017

2017
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Raelene and Natalie, Support Workers, Ozcare Sunshine Coast with Shane, Client

Mental Health Services
• Mental Health Recovery
Support for people over 16 years old living with a mental health condition on the Gold Coast, Mackay, Sunshine
Coast and Townsville to journey on the path to recovery
• Resident Recovery
Help for individuals living in a boarding house or hostel in Toowoomba and having trouble with their mental
health recovery
• Support Time and Rehabilitation and Recovery Service (STARR)
Support for people living with a mental illness or disorder aged between 18-64 years in Mackay to promote wellness

support to
achieve goals

23
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Women’s Refuges
Five refuges located around Queensland for women and their children escaping domestic and family violence

2017

590

NUMBER OF FAMILIES
WE SUPPORTED IN
OUR REFUGES

2017

8,618

NUMBER OF BED
NIGHTS PROVIDED
BY OUR REFUGES

Drug & Alcohol Services
• Illicit Drug & Alcohol Detox Centre
Live-in detox centre in South Brisbane for men over 18 years who are homeless or at risk of homelessness and who
want help to stop using drugs and alcohol
• Drug & Alcohol Residential Recovery Service (DARRS)
Our six residential services in Brisbane, Ipswich, Cairns, Mackay and Townsville offer a structured program to help
individuals recover from the effects of addiction to drugs and alcohol

2017

321

NUMBER OF PEOPLE WE
SUPPORTED IN DARRS

2017

12,527

NUMBER OF BED NIGHTS
PROVIDED BY DARRS
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Goodna Integrated Family Support Program
Early intervention support to families with children that attend the Goodna State Schools, Goodna Pre-school
or Goodna Special School

The Bush Connection
Assistance for those in the Toowoomba area who are finding it difficult to maintain their farm or manage their finances
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OZCARE VILLA VINCENT
AGED CARE FACILITY – TOWNSVILLE
We have arrived at our aged care facility in Townsville, Villa
Vincent, and we are shown to our special care wing for
people living with dementia. We’ve come to meet Brad, a
volunteer, who we’ve been told has had an enormous impact
here over the past 12 months.
We’re slightly mesmerised. Brad is young and handsome, and
if we’re being honest, not at all who we had expected. We’ve
interrupted Brad sitting with residents, playing a friendly game
of cards. As Brad gets up to greet us we notice his foot is in a
walking cast and we’re intrigued to find out more.
Four years ago, Brad was hit by a truck while on his motorbike.
At the time, Brad was in his late 20s and a busy restaurant
manager. Lucky to be alive, Brad not only went under the
wheels of the cargo truck, he was also hit by a ute when he
popped out the other side. Amazingly, Brad survived - but his
foot and mental health weren’t quite so fortunate.
Multiple surgeries and chronic pain meant that Brad couldn’t
return to work. Accustomed to the hospitality industry,
working six days a week with long hours, Brad found his new
life very difficult. He became closed off with no desire to
leave the house. Brad knew he had to make a change, that’s
when he discovered volunteering at Villa Vincent.
12 months on, not only has Brad had a positive impact in our
dementia care wing, he also has a new perspective on life.
“It’s the people here and being around them, they’ve
encouraged me to grow mentally over the last 12
months,” said Brad.
“It’s all to do with how they see the world; they see it like
kids… all in bright colours. It’s really grounded me and I
love being here.”
Brad feels working with people who have changeable
behaviours has helped him stay positive.
Working with people living with dementia has been a
massive eye opener – everyone should try it - I’ve been
through some hard times but that doesn’t compare to
what they’re going through.
I arrive in the morning and sit down and have a coffee
with the residents to determine their moods. Depending
on how they’re feeling I’ll then decide what to do. If
someone seems down in the dumps I’ll put music on or
take them to do woodworking.

I’ve actually never done carpentry before, but since being
here I’ve found the residents love it. We’ve set up a work
bench and made wine racks, planter boxes, a chicken
coop and toy trucks, all of which have been used to
decorate our outdoor area.
Brad explains that every day is different and it’s about
bringing positive direction to the residents’ lives, something
he finds so satisfying he even describes it as addictive.
The first time I met Vince, one of the residents here, I
could see it was hard for him to talk. I knew he used to
work in a hardware store so I gave him a hammer to
hold. His excitement was uncontainable, he started
tapping everything.
If Vince is having a rough day I’ll often take him out to
Bunnings. He feels at home there surrounded by
hammers and nails.
That’s the thing about this place; we get to know the
residents so well that they’re like family. We know how to
calm them down when they’re agitated and what makes
them happy.
Kay is one resident in particular that has helped Brad see the
world in a new light.
Kay will walk outside and see the trees and say, “Isn’t this
beautiful” she takes the time to stop and smell the roses,
something we can all learn from.
Kay used to work in a girls’ dormitory as a dorm mistress.
Given her background it is no surprise to often see Kay
cleaning. She’ll sweep, tidy and wipe benches and often
it’s hard to stop her. That’s when I like to bring Kay out
into the garden and we plant seedlings because it helps
centre her.
We’re so grateful to have volunteers like Brad with huge
hearts of gold in our services; it is also gratifying to hear how
much our service means to Brad.
“I wouldn’t have survived if I hadn’t found Villa Vincent…
this place saved my life. I think there’s a negative
preconception about aged care and how people get
treated but from what I’ve seen at Ozcare everyone gets
treated like family.”

WE GET TO KNOW THE RESIDENTS
S O W E L L – T H E Y ’ R E L I K E F A M I LY
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OZCARE DRUG & ALCOHOL RESIDENTIAL
RECOVERY SERVICE – CAIRNS
We often wonder what leads people down the path of
addiction and what better way to understand than by
speaking firsthand with a resident from our Drug & Alcohol
Residential Recovery Service (DARRS) in Cairns.
Immediately, we are inspired by Brendan’s courage as he
speaks openly and honestly with us about how he came to
need the support of our services.
I grew up on the Gold Coast, I was one of seven kids, my
mum is Aboriginal and my dad is Spanish. I grew up in a
bad circle of friends. We kept to ourselves and hated
everyone else. By the age of fifteen I was in a gang.
We thought we were better than everyone else. We ran
the drugs, the alcohol, if anyone needed anything they
had to go through us. It was a tough world and I knew it
wasn’t right.
When I was 23 years old I found out I was going to be a
dad and I knew I had to move away. My partner and I
moved to Gladstone and I got my first job as a foundry
moulder. I really enjoyed it, but I was still drinking. Every
day after work I was going to the bottle shop, I just
couldn’t seem to leave my old life behind.
It wrecked my relationship. I ended up in jail and my ex
took my kids to Cairns. When I got out I moved back to
the Gold Coast and got caught up in bad habits. I’d lost
my friends and it was just me by myself, off my head at
my sister’s house.
It got to the point where one day I was just sitting at my
sisters after being awake for seven days. I couldn’t talk, I
couldn’t hear what I was saying - but I did understand
when my sister said “I don’t want you here anymore.”
I decided to move to Cairns to be closer to my kids but I
had no support. I managed to trick my ex into thinking I
was ok and I took my kids on a four week holiday to the
Gold Coast. I wasn’t using drugs but I was drinking. I
went to a mate’s place with my kids and got on the drink.
The party got rough and when I woke up the next
morning I didn’t know where my kids were, luckily my
sister had them.

I came here and it was good. I enjoyed seeing life in a
different way. I felt like a teenager again having
experiences for the first time. I’m a cultural person; I
know how to dance, play the didge and I found all that
again, in here.
Life was going good but six weeks into the program I
learnt my cousin had passed away on the Gold Coast.
His death really affected me. I lasted two days and then I
walked out the gate and went to the bottle shop.
Our DARRS services work on a sobriety agreement. By
turning to alcohol, Brendan had effectively exited our service
and was unable to return.
I felt so disappointed in myself for leaving. I went back to
the Gold Coast to my sisters and she said to me she was
so proud of me for what I had achieved so far. I wasn’t
going to give up; I wanted to get back into rehab.
Fortunately our Continuing Care program was able to help.
Ozcare support worker Krystal explains.
As soon as someone with an addiction calls looking for
support we can help.
In Brendan’s case he drank offsite and didn’t come back the
next day. He realised he’d made a mistake and it was evident
he had the self-motivation for the program so I worked with
him one on one to help him get back into DARRS.
It took Brendan a couple of weeks to get back to where he
was but he tells us he feels stronger than ever.
I’m five weeks in and I’ve just signed up to do a Diploma
of Personal Training after rehab. I go to the gym every
day and with Ozcare’s help I’m seeing my kids again.
You have to really want this – you have to be ready. It’s
different the second time and I’m still judging myself for
leaving the first time. It’s a different life, something I’ve
never had before, this feeling of happiness. I don’t know
what I would have done without this place; probably
dead or in jail… I’m so thankful.

I knew I had to get clean. That’s when I got in touch
with Ozcare. I stayed at their homeless hostel in Cairns
for six weeks waiting to get into DARRS. I had my eye on
the prize.

I D O N ’ T K N O W W H AT I W O U L D
H AV E D O N E W I T H O U T T H I S P L A C E

A SHOW OF HEART

29

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

A N N U A L F I N A Michaela
N C I A L R E Pand
O R T Joan
2017

A SHOW OF HEART

ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 2017

30

OZCARE PORT DOUGLAS
AGED CARE FACILITY
It would be fair to say that a lot of people hold a
preconception about residential aged care; that it’s cold,
clinical and often solitary. At Ozcare we’re determined to
break down these prejudices and shine a light on the truth
about living in an aged care facility.
Today, we’re at Ozcare Port Douglas, and just from looking at
it, it’s hard to conceive that it is an aged care facility; it looks
much more like a tropical resort. We’re talking one on one
with Michaela, a clinical nurse, to find out what life is really
like at Ozcare.
Formerly a stroke coordinator for Central Queensland,
Michaela found herself becoming disheartened after regularly
seeing people discharged early from hospital and going home
without support. Michaela decided it was time for a change
and took up a position with Ozcare earlier this year.
It’s more rewarding than I expected. There’s a stigma
that working in aged care is somehow less important
than working in a hospital but I have found the opposite.
Nursing is so much more than medication here; it
involves physical, emotional and spiritual learning about
residents to bring out their strengths and abilities,
especially for those with challenging behaviours.
Caring is so much more than dispensing medications, it is
the discovery of a whole person with unique experiences,
and ensuring that this person feels needed and wanted.
I thought it would be exceptionally difficult to let go of
my acute nursing background but it hasn’t been. I think
it’s much more significant what I’m doing here, caring
for people at the end of their lives in possibly their
forever home.
Michaela tells us every day is different.
I tried to have a routine here but it doesn’t work very well
and that’s ok. I have six children so I work on a routine
but I am enjoying the change.
What’s most important, day to day, is that residents’
needs are being met while maintaining a homely
environment. I don’t have an office, I’m often on the floor
and I try to call in and check on each resident. It’s this
one on one time that makes it feel like a family in here.
Michaela said there’s often a risk that when people move
into aged care they feel like they lose their identity and

purpose so they focus on personalising care for residents.
We have a lady here who likes to hang washing so we
make sure we put a few laundry baskets around for her.
We have gentlemen from the Daintree rainforest who
spent their lives generating their own electricity and
living off the land. It’s not always easy for everyone to
move in here but we try and make the transition as
smooth as we can. One gentleman in particular was
finding it very hard to adjust so he now has a weather
station so he can measure rainfall.
Another resident living with dementia, used to love
playing the organ and singing for her local church,
she now has a keyboard in her room, this also
helps staff focus her attention during periods of
challenging behaviour.
The care here is very individualised and I love that. We
personalise the care for everyone as best as we can.
We also put in those little touches to make sure it feels
like home. Our dining room experience includes flowers
on tables and matching tea sets. The food here is quite
incredible, we even have Mediterranean food on offer for
our little Italian community of cane farmers.
Resident Joan agrees. “They’re very good here – very
obliging with whatever you need help with. I have a lot of
friends here, people that I knew from Mossman, and we often
catch up for a cup of tea. It’s nice to see familiar faces.”
Michaela tells us that Joan has found happiness since
coming to Ozcare Port Douglas.
Joan was having multiple falls and her family weren’t
able to be around a lot. The local ambulance service was
starting to go and check on her and it got to the point
where she wasn’t well enough to be at home on her own.
Since coming here in December last year Joan’s health
has stabilised and her quality of life has improved
significantly. She’s got genuine friends around her
from school.
It makes my heart burst to see Joan smiling and laughing
again, she was upset about being here when she first
arrived but now she’s really found her place in what is
like a big family.

WE PUT IN THOSE LIT TLE TOUCHES
TO MAKE IT FEEL LIKE HOME
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OZCARE HOMELESS
MEN’S HOSTEL - CAIRNS
Our hostels offer men, aged 18 years and over experiencing
homelessness, short term accommodation and support to
get their lives back on track.

This place has given me my start back in life, without the
hostel I don’t know where I would be.
Kacey, support worker at the hostel, said the program is
flexible enough to work with men regardless of their
background and issues.

We’re at our Cairns hostel and we’ve just been introduced
to former resident, Ricky, who with Ozcare’s support was
able to turn his life around and now operates his own
handyman business.
I’m 53 years old and I grew up in a country town with
1,200 people and six pubs. Alcohol environments were all
I ever knew.
I’ve lost so many things through my drinking. I’ve had two
unsuccessful marriages and last year another
relationship ended and my way of coping was alcohol. I
got kicked out of where I was living, which is how I came
to be sleeping in my car drinking cheap casks of wine.
Ironically it was Ricky’s brother, a drug and alcohol
counsellor in Victoria, who encouraged him to seek help.

Even though I had been drinking cask wine I ate a healthy
diet – I’m mostly vegan. I was worried the kitchen
wouldn’t know what to do with a vegan but the cook was
understanding and gave me permission to use the
kitchen to cook my quinoa to make my own salads. She
also made the most amazing dishes and would take my
serving out before putting in the bad stuff (animal
products) – I really was quite spoilt.

I owed money to the government and I was able to
organise to do my community service while I was here. It
was great relief being able to remove the debt and it’s a
big weight off my mind.

Often when guys come to us they are very closed and
they struggle to engage with staff. It’s our job to build
rapport with them, to get to a place of trust where they’ll
provide more information about their strengths and
goals so we can lead them in a positive direction.
Kacey has quite a unique way of developing that connection
and finding a common ground with his clients.
I challenge them to a game of chess. If they lose they
have to tell me their story.

My luck turned around as soon as I asked for help. The
universe looked after me. I was told there was a room
available at Ozcare, it even had its own ensuite.

I tell people all of the time I’m not embarrassed about
where I come from - this is me, this is where I am. My
time at the hostel allowed me to work on myself and with
the help of staff I’ve turned my life around.

Just because someone is homeless it doesn’t mean they
are a lesser person. Homelessness often goes hand in
hand with drug and alcohol issues, gambling or mental
health issues.

We’re very clear when the guys come in here, this is not a
backpackers - they’re here to work on their issues. We
help them develop a strength-based plan so they can
move forward and we link them in to other services
based on their individual needs.
We encourage all the guys to keep in touch when they
move out and we offer a mobile support service. Once
they have moved into sustainable accommodation we
can help out with a meal, laundry or budget support and
if they fall down again our doors are always open.
Kacey said it’s great to see Ricky restart his life.
It’s a great success story. It’s great that we were able to
make a difference in Ricky’s life.
At Ozcare we help people; if we can advocate for
someone and help them better themselves then we’ll
have a better community.

Before I came here my business had almost folded
because of my drinking, while here I started working
again, and now my business has picked up.

THIS PLACE HAS GIVEN ME
M Y S TA R T B A C K I N L I F E
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OZCARE TOWNSVILLE
- NDIS SERVICES
We all know life can change in the blink of an eye, but do we
ever really imagine it will happen to us?
Patricia, an Ozcare National Disability Insurance Scheme
(NDIS) participant, knows firsthand what it’s like to have her
world turned upside down. At the age of 33 she was
diagnosed with a rare neuromuscular disorder.
“It was after I’d had my three kids. I was 33 and one day I
found I couldn’t walk straight,” said Patricia.
“I went to the doctor, that was in 1985, and it wasn’t until
1986 they isolated the recessive Friedreich's ataxia gene.”
Friedreich’s ataxia is a genetic disorder that causes
progressive damage to the nervous system, resulting in
symptoms ranging from muscle weakness and speech
problems to heart disease.

As her needs increased, Patricia received approval for a
Level 4 Home Care Package which gave her access to
additional showers on the weekend before being eligible to
apply for NDIS late last year.
Through the NDIS, Patricia now receives 21 hours of services
every week.
It’s making such a difference. Before I only had half an
hour allocated for showering, now on NDIS it’s longer
and I feel more relaxed and safer.
I wasn’t eating properly before, but now I have someone
come in the evenings to cook my meals… It just makes
life easier.
It’s important that Patricia has regular help. She recently had
a scare, which made her all too aware of her limitations.

Patricia was in shock. She was the first known person in her
family to have the disorder.
“It made me think back to when I was 25 and always
spilling drinks and needing to wear flat shoes… I thought
I was just clumsy, said Patricia.
“I was told I had late onset of the disorder. At the time of
diagnosis my youngest child was just 12 months old and I
had a three and a four year old.”
Now 65 years old, Patricia has been wheelchair bound for
the last 13 years and her health is getting progressively
worse but her outlook is filled with optimism.

“I was out watering the garden one afternoon and my
wheelchair came off the footpath and I was stuck out
there for ages, in the cool air with no alarm.”
Now there’s always someone coming to check on Patricia
and help her with showering, meal preparation, cleaning,
washing, getting around and watering her gardens.
It’s wonderful! The staff are very caring and they’ll do
anything for you.
I know the girls very well and they’re people that I can
trust. I feel so much more relaxed now and I don’t need
to stress about getting things done.

I have had to be a positive person. I’ve been a single
parent for the last 30 years and I’ve had my health to
manage, but exercise has helped me to slow my
disorder down.

Being on NDIS has taken the pressure off my children
who all work full-time and have families of their own.
I definitely feel better off.

I’ve had my house purpose-built to suit my needs and I
have a lot to look forward to with five grandkids and one
on the way.
Patricia has also had support from Ozcare for the last
seven years.
Starting on home care services through the Commonwealth
Home Support Programme services, Patricia was funded to
receive help with showering Monday to Friday for eight hours
of services a fortnight.

IT JUST MAKES LIFE EASIER
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OZCARE DAY RESPITE CENTRE
– TOWNSVILLE
For many elderly Australians, growing older can be quite a
lonely process; you may have outlived your partner, become
less mobile and find it harder to get out of the house, or feel
like a burden on your family.
Your older years don’t have to be a lonely. It can actually be a
time of new beginnings, new friendships and new found
hobbies. That’s exactly what happened to Gwen when she
started attending our day respite centre in Townsville.
I was feeling down in the dumps living on my own. I
contacted Ozcare and I’ve been coming here for a year
now, every Monday and Thursday, and it’s made a big
improvement to my state of mind.
Since coming I’ve made friends with lots of people;
Mavis, Jack, Hazel… I really value coming here, I come
alive when I interact with other people so it really meets
my social needs.
Care worker Kerryn says that attending a day respite centre
encourages people to socialise and do things for themselves.
When people come here they can expect to have a nice
time and to make new friends.
Often the first day is quite scary for our new clients
and they’re usually quite shy, but by the second day
they’ve gotten into the swing of things and they really
enjoy themselves.
Gwen tells us coming to day respite is the highlight of her week.
I really look forward to Mondays and Thursdays. I’ve
given the Ozcare name to other ladies I know to
encourage them to come along to have friendship and
fellowship with like-minded people of a similar age. Not
to mention the delicious three course lunch menu of
soup, main and dessert!

because I don’t have a car anymore.
We get an opportunity to mix with the community. We go
to cricket at Ozcare Villa Vincent Aged Care Facility and
we do lunch outings, visit local art galleries and go to
Bunnings to pick up craft material for the centre.
I also enjoy doing woodwork and getting involved in the
many activities on offer.
Gwen recalls one activity in particular, Pyjama Day, where
they all had to dress in their pyjamas.
"I’m sure my neighbours thought I’d lost my marbles,
standing out in front of my house waiting for the Ozcare
bus in my PJs,” said Gwen.
All jokes aside, Gwen is adamant anyone feeling lonely
should come along and give day respite a try.
I’d encourage anyone to come along to improve their
mental health and well-being. It’s wonderful coming here
and I can’t speak highly enough about it.
I’d be lost without this place. Being able to be picked up
by the bus and brought here and taken home again at
the end of the day so I can see my friends and have a
chat, means everything. It’s a great thing to have a chat
and get to know others.
Kerryn said attending day respite offers the opportunity for
everyone to meet someone new or learn something new
every day.
“Our goal is to make sure the people who come here
leave at the end of the day with a smile on their face.
Then we know it’s been a great day!

Gwen is so excited about the centre she is happy to share
with us all the different things she gets up to.
We get a monthly newsletter telling us what’s planned
daily for the month ahead and staff actively promote a
fun and happy atmosphere.
When I’m here I like to water the gardens and read the
newspaper, which I don’t get at home, and to go out on
bus trips. The bus trips are my favourite thing to do

I T ’S W O N D E R F U L C O M I N G H E R E

Del and Julie
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OZCARE CAIRNS
- HOME CARE PACKAGES
We are all ageing… every single one of us, and there’s
nothing we can do about it… well not yet anyway!

It’s hard to believe Del is nearly 90, she looks amazing but
she hasn’t had it easy.

No one is immune from getting older and most of us share a
similar goal - to maintain our independence as we age.

Del was diagnosed with ovarian cancer 29 years ago and told
she wasn’t going to survive. Her lungs aren’t in great shape
and she has degenerative disc disease but Del hasn’t let any
of this hold her back.

For many of us that means ageing in the comfort of our own
homes, surrounded by the things we love.

I have excellent friends and neighbours.

Del, one of our home care package clients in Cairns,
is no different.

I go to bridge twice a week, swim at the pool three
mornings a week, attend mass once a week and
occasionally go to Morning Melodies with friends. I’m a
social person and I love that!

She’s almost 90 and living with a number of health
conditions but she’s still very active; driving herself around
town and living on her own.
Del shares her story about how she came to use Ozcare.
When I was younger my mum did all the housework. I got
married at 23 and when I fell pregnant with my first child
soon after, I was really sick, so my mum and mother-inlaw helped me around the house.
If I’m honest with you, I was never any good at housework
and I never did much of it!

I’m very happy with Ozcare, I have two regular carers
and they do what suits me. It’s worked out really well.
Del’s carer Julie said it’s people like Del that make her job
so rewarding.
Del’s a people person, just like me.

When my husband Tom retired, we did the housework
together. Then Tom lost his leg due to his diabetes and I
didn’t know where to turn.

All of Del’s family live away so it’s great to be able to
come here.

Luckily Ozcare was there to help us.
I still remember the first day I opened the door and
there was a pretty blonde girl standing on the doorstep
and she said “Hello, I’m from Ozcare and I’m here to
help you.”
I can’t tell you how relieved I was to see her and hear
those words. That was 12 years ago and the services still
mean the world to me today.

I’m a busy person and if I have to change my services for
some reason I know I can ring Ozcare and they will
accommodate me.

I enjoy working with the elderly. A lot of the people I visit
don’t have anyone. I come along for an hour, do my job
and have a chat to them and leave knowing I’ve made
them happy.
I have a mother and I think if everyone treats their clients
how they would treat their own mother then we will all be
doing a great job!

Ozcare are marvellous, they work around me.
They come and change the bed, sweep and do the
washing, clean my kitchen and help me with my meals.
Julie, one of my carers, can do my shopping in a tenth
of the time it would take me and she knows all my
favourite brands.

OZCARE ARE MARVELLOUS,
THEY WORK AROUND ME
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OZCARE MARIA HOUSE
– TOWNSVILLE
Ozcare’s Maria House in Townsville provides immediate
supported accommodation for women and children who are
homeless or at risk of becoming homeless.
It’s the only women’s shelter of its type that Ozcare operates
in Queensland and women from all walks of life turn to Maria
House looking for help.
Coordinator, Susan Johnson, said Maria House staff
support women to address a variety of issues using a
strength based approach framework to empower them to
achieve their goals as well as source and maintain long
term stable housing, to break the cycle that contributes to
their risk of homelessness.
We can accommodate up to five families at once and we
run at capacity most of the time.
When women are referred to us they are usually at their
wits’ end and feeling pretty emotional so we do
everything we can to settle them in as quickly as
possible.
We start with an assessment to determine their level of
need; women with children always take priority. Privacy
and consent forms are signed and families are taken to
their unit or house to settle in.
The accommodation is furnished and feels warm and
inviting. On arrival they receive linen and a starter pack
including things like toiletries and cleaning agents.
However, the service that Maria House delivers is much
more than providing a safe environment for women and
their children.
The goal is to get these women and their children into
long-term housing. This means working with the client to
access allowances through Centrelink so they can get in
the habit of paying rent, providing education on how to
maintain a tenancy, and the importance of establishing
a routine.
We assist women with housing applications, drive them
to rental inspections, and help them gather
identification paperwork; a lot of the women don’t have
a birth certificate.

We also link the women and children to other services so
that they have support when we’re no longer there.
Essentially, we offer solutions and try to empower these
women to get them moving forward.
Leisa Hernandez, Support Worker at Maria House, said the
service helps people turn their lives around.
After experiencing so many knock backs, just having the
knowledge and education of what is available means the
world to our clients
We had one client, we’ll call her Kate. She was fleeing
a domestic violence situation and applied for a
scholarship to escape.
When Kate arrived in Townsville she had no income. She
wasn’t eligible for services or Centrelink and she quickly
found herself in financial difficulty. Kate came to Maria
House with five children, no income and no food.
We immediately provided Kate’s family with a roof over
their heads and organised food vouchers with St Vincent
de Paul Society. We gave Kate and her children donated
clothes and toiletries.
We will never forget their gratitude the first day they
arrived; they sat in a circle holding hands and said,
“Thanks Ozcare for the house.”
To help Kate get back on her feet we waived her rent at
the start of her stay, set up an extension on her power
and phone bills, wrote support letters to waive school
fees and connected her with other services.
A truly amazing woman, Kate finished her studies and
graduated while living at Maria House.
Kate has since secured her own private rental and lives
within walking distance to the shops and her children’s
school. Next on her to do list is to get her license so she
drive a car and find herself a job.
It goes to show, even when the odds seem stacked against
you, you can still have a bright future with a little help.

If they have children they are referred to the local health
centre to check on milestones and immunisations, and to
identify any need for support with learning difficulties.

THANKS OZCARE FOR THE HOUSE
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BOARD OF
DIRECTORS.
CHAIRMAN

RON SULLIVAN
Qualifications: NZCE (C&S), Dip CONC TECH
Experience: Board member since 2015. Now retired,
Mr Sullivan’s career as a Civil Engineering Construction
Manager spanned 45 years. Member and current State
Council Vice President of St Vincent de Paul Society
Queensland.
Special Responsibilities: Mr Sullivan is a member of
the Remuneration Committee and the Risk and
Governance Committee.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

JUNE CHANDLER

Experience: Board member since 2011. Over ten years
employed by ANZ Banking Group. Owned and operated
business in tourism industry. Former State Councillor
and Secretary of St Vincent de Paul Society Queensland
State Council. Former Chair of the Society’s Migrants &
Refugees Committee. Co-Chair of the Society’s Children’s
Education Fund.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

PROFESSOR SUSAN DANN

PETER DRIVER

Qualifications: BA MPub Admin PhD,
FAMI CPM MAICD

Qualifications: FCPA, JP (Qual), B. Bus

Experience: Board member since 2013.
Professor of Marketing, Australian
Catholic University. Extensive
experience as a Board director including
St Rita’s College, St Vincent’s and
Holy Spirit Health, General Practice
Queensland, Quality Improvement
Council, Australian Marketing Institute
and AFL Queensland Commission.
Special Responsibilities: Professor Dann
is Chair of the Remuneration Committee
and a member of the Audit and Finance
Committee.

Experience: Board member since
2016. Certified Practising Accountant –
partner in a private accounting business
in regional Queensland. Over 20 years
experience in senior management
positions in private and public
organisations. Former State Councillor
and Treasurer of St Vincent de Paul
Society Queensland State Council.
Special Responsibilities: Mr Driver
is Chairman of the Risk and
Governance Committee.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

FRED GILLETT

KATHERINE SADLER

Qualifications: GIA (Cert)

Qualifications: BA/LLB MBA LLM, FAICD

Experience: Board member since
2004. Over 50 years business
experience including senior
management roles in the finance
industry and 10 years as Managing
Director and major shareholder of
a national importer/distribution
company.

Experience: Board member since
2017. Director of Brisbane Green Heart
CitySmart Pty Ltd. Previous member
and former Chair of Mercy Community
Services. Commercial lawyer with
extensive experience and expertise in
governance, commercial transactions,
administrative law, information
technology, privacy, and data security.

Special Responsibilities: Mr
Gillett is a member of the Risk and
Governance Committee and the
Audit and Finance Committee.

COMPANY SECRETARY

WILLIAM ALLAN

Qualifications: FIPA CTA GIA(Cert)
Experience: Extensive experience in Company Secretarial and CFO
positions, both in private enterprise and the Not-for-Profit sector.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

JOHN THOMAS

MATTHEW P VANDERBYL

Qualifications: MBA CPA, FCMA MAICD

Qualifications: BA Grad Dip Mgt MBA,
GAICD

Experience: Board member since
2014. Group Finance Director, Toyota
Tsusho South Pacific Holdings Pty
Ltd. Extensive financial management,
strategic planning and general
management experience, at senior
management and board levels in large
corporations, over a career spanning
40 years.
Special Responsibilities: Mr Thomas
is Chairman of the Audit and Finance
Committee and a member of the
Remuneration Committee.

Experience: Board member since
2011. Previously Board member 2000
to 2010. Chief Superintendent,
Queensland Police Service. Former
Vice President of St Vincent de Paul
Society State Council
of Queensland.
Special Responsibilities: Mr
Vanderbyl is a member of the Risk
and Governance Committee.

Qualifications: BA LLB(Hons) G DipAppFin (Finsia) Grad.Dip.
AppCorpGov, AGIA
COMPANY SECRETARY

JOHN LEMON

Experience: Qualified Solicitor with vast experience and/or In-House
Legal Counsel with various companies including M.I.M. Holdings Limited,
General Electric Company and Bank of Queensland Limited. Chaired the
Audit Committee of an ASX-listed company.
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LEADERSHIP TEAM.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

EXECUTIVE OFFICER - FINANCE

BILL ALLAN

PETER CAMDEN

EXECUTIVE OFFICER - STRATEGY

EXECUTIVE OFFICER -

HEAD OF BRAND

& RESOURCE MANAGEMENT

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES

& COMMUNICATIONS

GAVIN WRIGHT

RUSSELL YOUNG

SARAH CHAPMAN

ANTHONY GODFREY

EXECUTIVE OFFICER - OPERATIONS
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DAMIAN FOLEY

HEAD OF AGED CARE

LANNA RAMSAY

HEAD OF RISK & COMPLIANCE

JOEL READING

HEAD OF INNOVATION & TECHNOLOGY

HEAD OF PEOPLE & CULTURE

JOHN SCURR

BRETT WARHURST

OUR ROLE IS TO EMPOWER AND SUPPORT OUR OUTSTANDING
MANAGERS TO TURN OUR VISION INTO A REALITY

>>

HEAD OF COMMUNITY CARE
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT.
>>

The information on pages 1 to 46 forms part of the
directors’ report for the financial year ended 30 June
2017 and is to be read in conjunction with the
following information.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF OZCARE
HAS PLEASURE IN SUBMITTING ITS
REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR
E N D E D 3 0 J U N E 2 0 1 7.

DIRECTORS

The names of each person who has been a director during the year and to the date of this report are:

• Ron Sullivan (Chairman)
• Andrew Weil (resigned 5 September 2016)
• Anthony Godfrey
(Chief Executive Officer - resigned as a Director
1 September 2016)
• June Chandler
• Professor Susan Dann

•
•
•
•
•
•

Peter Driver
Bishop Brian Finnigan (retired 25 November 2016)
Fred Gillett
Katherine Sadler (appointed 1 January 2017)
John Thomas
Matthew Vanderbyl

Directors have been in office since the start of the financial year to the date of this report unless otherwise stated.
The qualifications, experience and special responsibilities of the directors in office at the date of this report
appear on pages 41 to 44 of this annual report.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The principal continuing activity of the company is to act as a Public Benevolent Institution providing a wide range
of programs and services which aim to improve the quality of life for the aged, frail, disabled and disadvantaged.
These services include:
• Residential Aged Care
• Community Care

• Community Nursing
• Community Support Services

There have been no significant changes in the nature of these activities during the financial year.
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DIRECTORS’ MEETINGS
The number of meetings of the Board of Directors and Board Committees during the year ended
30 June 2017, and attendance by Directors at those meetings were as follows:
Director

Andrew Weil
Anthony Godfrey
Bishop Brian Finnigan
Ron Sullivan
Fred Gillett
Matthew Vanderbyl
June Chandler
Susan Dann
John Thomas
Peter Driver
Katherine Sadler

Board

H
1
1
4
8
8
8
8
8
8
8
4

Risk & Governance
Committee

A
1
1
3
8
7
7
8
7
8
7
2

H

A

1

1

5

5

5

5

5

2

5

Audit & Finance
Committee

H

A

Remuneration
Committee

H

A

1

1

1

1

1

0

1

1

1

1

1

1

5

H - Number of meetings held during the time the director held office or was a member of that committee during the year.
A - Number of meetings attended.

SHORT-TERM AND
LONG-TERM OBJECTIVES
The company’s short-term objectives are to:

The company’s long-term objectives are to:

• Provide quality health and human services to clients
at all times irrespective of religion, sex, race and
national origin;

• Be the provider of choice for both clients and other
stakeholders;

• Provide these services to the community and in
particular to the aged, frail, disabled and
disadvantaged; and
• Be recognised as a leader in the provision of
these services.

• Strive for continuous improvement to provide the
highest level of service to our clients;
• Strengthen existing programs and services through
operating excellence and satisfying client needs; and
• Ensure sustainability through responsible
long-term management.
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BUSINESS STRATEGIES
To achieve these objectives, the company has
adopted the following strategies:

• Continual interaction with clients to assess current
needs and future trends; and

• The company strives to attract and retain quality
staff to provide the services which will ensure the
ongoing success of the company;

• The company’s staff strive to meet consistent
standards of best practice and provide clear
expectations of professional accountabilities and
responsibilities to all stakeholders.

• Staff work in partnership with a range of community
stakeholders which is evidenced by the company
continually receiving new projects and services;
• Investing and maintaining the quality of the
company’s assets;

KEY PERFORMANCE MEASURES
Ozcare’s performance is constantly measured against
the following KPIs:
• number of people assisted

• financial performance to budget

• number of different services provided

• maintenance of capital base

• quality of service (including incident reporting)

• investment returns
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MEMBERS’ GUARANTEE
Ozcare is incorporated under the Corporations Act 2001 and is a
company limited by guarantee. If the company is wound up, the
Constitution states that each member is required to contribute
a maximum of $10 each towards meeting any outstanding
obligations of the company.
At 30 June 2017, the total amount that members of the company
are liable to contribute if the company is wound up is $10.

AUDITOR’S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION
A copy of the auditor’s independence declaration as required
under section 60-40 (1)(a) of the Australian Charities and
Not-for-profit Commission Regulation 2013 is set out on the
next page.
Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Board
of Directors.

Ron Sullivan - Chairman
Dated this 27th day of October 2017
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Tel: +61 7 3237 5999
Fax: +61 7 3221 9227
www.bdo.com.au

Level 10, 12 Creek St
Brisbane QLD 4000
GPO Box 457 Brisbane QLD 4001
Australia

DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENCE BY K L COLYER TO THE DIRECTORS OF OZCARE
As lead auditor of Ozcare for the year ended 30 June 2017, I declare that, to the best of my knowledge
and belief, there have been:
1. No contraventions of the auditor independence requirements of the section 60-40 of Australian
Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012 in relation to the audit; and
2. No contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit.

K L Colyer
Director
BDO Audit Pty Ltd
Brisbane, 27 October 2017

BDO Audit Pty Ltd ABN 33 134 022 870 is a member of a national association of independent entities which are all members of BDO Australia Ltd ABN 77 050
110 275, an Australian company limited by guarantee. BDO Audit Pty Ltd and BDO Australia Ltd are members of BDO International Ltd, a UK company limited
by guarantee, and form part of the international BDO network of independent member firms. Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional
Standards Legislation, other than for the acts or omissions of financial services licensees.
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Tel: +61 7 3237 5999
Fax: +61 7 3221 9227
www.bdo.com.au

Level 10, 12 Creek St
Brisbane QLD 4000
GPO Box 457 Brisbane QLD 4001
Australia

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the members of Ozcare

Report on the Audit of the Financial Report
Opinion
We have audited the financial report of Ozcare (the registered entity), which comprises the statement
of financial position as at 30 June 2017, the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the financial report, including a summary of significant accounting policies, and the
responsible entities’ declaration.
In our opinion the accompanying financial report of Ozcare, is in accordance with Division 60 of the
Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012, including:
(i)

Giving a true and fair view of the registered entity’s financial position as at 30 June 2017 and of
its financial performance for the year then ended; and

(ii)

Complying with Australian Accounting Standards and Division 60 of the Australian Charities and
Not-for-profits Commission Regulation 2013.

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the Financial
Report section of our report. We are independent of the registered entity in accordance with the
auditor independence requirements of the Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Act
2012 (ACNC Act) and the ethical requirements of the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards
Board’s APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to our audit
of the financial report in Australia. We have also fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.
Other information
Those charged with governance are responsible for the other information. The other information
obtained at the date of this auditor’s report is information included in the Ozcare’s annual report, but
does not include the financial report and our auditor’s report thereon.
Our opinion on the financial report does not cover the other information and accordingly we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the financial report, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
report or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
BDO Audit Pty Ltd ABN 33 134 022 870 is a member of a national association of independent entities which are all members of BDO Australia Ltd ABN 77 050
110 275, an Australian company limited by guarantee. BDO Audit Pty Ltd and BDO Australia Ltd are members of BDO International Ltd, a UK company limited
by guarantee, and form part of the international BDO network of independent member firms. Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional
Standards Legislation, other than for the acts or omissions of financial services licensees.

52

53

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 2017

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information obtained prior to the date of this
auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
Responsibilities of responsible entities for the Financial Report
The responsible entities of the registered entity are responsible for the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial report in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the ACNC
Act, and for such internal control as the responsible entities determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of the financial report that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.
In preparing the financial report, responsible entities are responsible for assessing the registered
entity’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the responsible entities either intends
to liquidate the registered entity or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the registered entity’s financial
reporting process.
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the Financial Report
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole is free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of this financial report.
A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial report is located at the
Auditing and Assurance Standards Board website (http://www.auasb.gov.au/Home.aspx) at:
http://www.auasb.gov.au/auditors_responsibilities/ar4.pdf
This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

BDO Audit Pty Ltd

K L Colyer
Director

Brisbane, 27 October 2017

BDO Audit Pty Ltd ABN 33 134 022 870 is a member of a national association of independent entities which are all members of BDO Australia Ltd ABN 77 050
110 275, an Australian company limited by guarantee. BDO Audit Pty Ltd and BDO Australia Ltd are members of BDO International Ltd, a UK company limited
by guarantee, and form part of the international BDO network of independent member firms. Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional
Standards Legislation, other than for the acts or omissions of financial services licensees.
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DIRECTORS’
DECLARATION.
In accordance with a resolution of the directors of
Ozcare, the directors of the company declare that:
(a) there are reasonable grounds to believe that the
company is able to pay all of its debts, as and when
they become due and payable; and
(b) the financial statements and notes satisfy the
requirements of the Australian Charities and
Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012.
Signed in accordance with subsection 60.15(2) of the
Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission
Regulation 2013.

Ron Sullivan - Chairman
Dated this 27th day of October 2017
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017
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NOTES

2016

2017
$

RESTATED*

$

230,322,984

219,302,804

(153,646,602)

(156,146,747)

Purchased services

(4,529,519)

(3,525,978)

Premises expense

(12,618,730)

(12,637,369)

(4,159,301)

(4,564,111)

Food services

(6,432,870)

(6,116,894)

Client services

(4,072,208)

(4,395,616)

Depreciation and amortisation expenses

(20,131,595)

(17,136,732)

-

-

(9,712,502)

(9,212,543)

15,019,657

5,566,814

-

-

15,019,657

5,566,814

755,565

-

755,565

-

15,775,222

5,566,814

Revenue and other income

2

Employee benefits expense

Motor vehicle expense

Loss on disposal of non current assets
Other expenses
Profit before income tax
Income tax expense

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

3

Other comprehensive income
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss:
Changes in the fair value of other financial assets
Other comprehensive income for the year
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR

*See 'About This Report' section of the financial statements for details regarding the restatement.
The above statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income should be read in conjunction with the
accompanying notes.
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION AS AT 30 JUNE 2017

NOTES

2017
$

56

2016

RESTATED*

$

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents

4

16,014,499

37,800,848

Trade and other receivables

6

2,686,952

3,703,720

Other Financial Assets

9

5,000,000

26,971,000

Prepayments

1,710,500

1,096,660

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

25,411,951

69,572,228

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, Plant and Equipment

7

267,152,807

229,446,016

Investment Property

8

8,384,350

8,814,943

Other Financial Assets

9

101,322,184

54,853,083

Intangible Assets

10

36,705,529

38,682,044

TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS

413,564,870

331,796,086

TOTAL ASSETS

438,976,821

401,368,314

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables

11

21,072,123

17,045,549

Grants in advance

12

12,829,761

11,847,871

Employee Benefits

13

18,727,834

16,471,052

Resident liabilities

14

80,807,054

63,965,127

133,436,772

109,329,599

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Grants in advance

12

3,519,531

3,847,988

Employee Benefits

13

4,686,993

6,632,424

8,206,524

10,480,412

TOTAL LIABILITIES

141,643,296

119,810,011

NET ASSETS

297,333,525

281,558,303

755,565

-

Retained earnings

296,577,960

281,558,303

TOTAL EQUITY

297,333,525

281,558,303

TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

EQUITY
Reserves

*See 'About This Report' section of the financial statements for details regarding the restatement.
The above statement of financial position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017
BALANCE AT 1 JULY 2015
Restatement of prior period balances*
Restated total equity at the beginning of the financial
year

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income for the year

Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners

BALANCE AT 30 JUNE 2016

ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 2017

RETAINED
EARNINGS

TOTAL
$

RESERVES

201,572,840

99,209,545

300,782,385

74,418,649

(99,209,545)

(24,790,896)

275,991,489

-

275,991,489

5,566,814

-

5,566,814

-

-

-

5,566,814

-

5,566,814

-

-

-

281,558,303

-

281,558,303

15,019,657

-

15,019,657

-

755,565

755,565

15,019,657

755,565

15,775,222

-

-

-

296,577,960

755,565

297,333,525

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income for the year

Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners

BALANCE AT 30 JUNE 2017

*See 'About This Report' section of the financial statements for details regarding the restatement.
The above statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.		
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

NOTES

2017
$

58

2016
$

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
238,334,150

203,769,889

(203,321,602)

(175,798,390)

4,953,616

3,892,675

39,966,164

31,864,174

1,099,495

-

(56,361,228)

(30,935,771)

(80,846)

-

Investment in financial asset bank notes

(23,742,536)

(39,122,450)

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

(79,085,115)

(70,058,221)

-

(3,024)

36,023,401

25,660,398

(19,179,549)

(8,361,526)

Ingoing contributions received

785,000

-

Ingoing contributions refunded

(296,250)

-

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES

17,332,602

17,295,848

(21,786,349)

(20,898,198)

37,800,848

58,699,047

16,014,449

37,800,848

Receipts from activities
Payments to suppliers and employees
Interest received

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

17

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Payments for software

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Sundry deposits received
Refundable accommodation deposits received
Refundable accommodation deposits/Accommodation bonds refunded

Net increase/(decrease) in cash held
Cash at 1 July

CASH AT 30 JUNE

4

*See 'About This Report' section of the financial statements for details regarding the restatement.
The above statement of cash flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.		
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ABOUT THIS REPORT
CORPORATE INFORMATION
The financial report covers the economic activities of Ozcare. Ozcare is a company limited by guarantee.
The financial statements, which are presented in Australian dollars and rounded to the nearest dollar, were
authorised for issue on 27 October 2017 by the Directors. Ozcare is a non-profit entity for financial reporting
purposes under Australian Accounting Standards.								
The registered office of the company is: 						
Ozcare 						
66 River Terrace 						
Kangaroo Point QLD 4169

The notes to the financial statements

					

The notes include financial information which is required to understand the financial statements and is material
and relevant to the operations, financial position and performance of the Company. Information is considered
material and relevant if, for example:						
• The amount in question is significant because of its size or nature						
• It is important for understanding the results of the Company						
• It helps explain the impact of significant changes in the Company’s business – for example, acquisitions and
impairment write downs						
• It relates to an aspect of the Company’s operations that is important to its future performance			
			
Significant and other accounting policies that summarise the measurement basis used and are relevant to an
understanding of the financial statements are provided throughout the notes of the financial statements. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.				
		
Key events and transactions for reporting period		
				
The financial position and performance of Ozcare was particularly affected by the following events and
transactions during the reporting period:						
• Construction costs in relation to the Hervey Bay development						
• Pursuant to the settlement reached between St Vincent de Paul Society Queensland (SVDP) and Ozcare, Ozcare
became a controlled entity of SVDP on 1 September 2016. 					
						
Restatements						
On 1 September 2016, Ozcare became a controlled entity of SVDP. As a result, Ozcare reviewed its accounting
policies to ensure consistency with SVDP (its parent entity). In conjunction with this review, the Directors
also reviewed its accounting policies to assess whether more reliable and more relevant information could be
provided in its financial statements. The following adjustments have been made retrospectively:
• Land and Buildings that were previously recorded at fair value are now recorded at cost.			
• Provision for sick leave has been removed from the balance sheet as Ozcare does not have a present
obligation to pay this balance.						
• Intangibles assets (bed licenses) were previously recorded as cost and valuation are now all classified as cost.
Bed licenses contributed at no cost have been recognised as income.					
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• Asset revaluation reserves in relation to Land & Buildings and Bed Licenses have been reversed as a result of
the above accounting policies changes.						
						
The above have been adjusted by restating each of the affected financial statement line items for the prior
periods as follows:			

STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

30 JUNE 2016
30 JUNE 2016 INCREASE/ 30 JUNE 2016
AUDITED (DECREASE) RESTATED

1 JULY 2015
1 JULY 2015 INCREASE/ 1 JULY 2015
AUDITED (DECREASE) RESTATED

ASSETS
Intangibles

35,851,268

-

35,851,268

35,851,268

Land

71,732,992 (8,606,638)

63,126,354

70,892,332

Buildings

173,241,799 (22,480,801) 150,760,998

-

35,851,268

(8,606,638) 62,285,694

157,061,078 (24,354,201) 132,706,877

LIABILITIES
Provisions (Sick leave provision)

NET ASSETS

7,893,136

(7,893,136)

304,752,606 (23,194,303)

8,169,943

-

(8,169,943)

-

281,558,303 300,782,385 (24,790,896) 275,991,489

EQUITY
Asset Revaluation Reserve

99,209,545 (99,209,545)
76,015,242

Retained Earnings

205,543,061

TOTAL EQUITY

304,752,606 (23,194,303)

STATEMENT OF
PROFIT OR LOSS

30 JUNE 2016

-

99,209,545 (99,209,545)

281,558,303 201,572,840

-

74,418,649 275,991,489

281,558,303 300,782,385 (24,790,896) 275,991,489

30 JUNE 2016
AUDITED

INCREASE/
(DECREASE)

30 JUNE 2016
RESTATED

155,869,940

276,807

156,146,747

Depreciation Expense

19,010,132

(1,873,400)

17,136,732

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

3,970,221

1,596,593

5,566,814

Employee benefits expense
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Working Capital			
At balance date the statement of financial position discloses prima facie a deficiency in working capital, being
excess of current liabilities over current assets of $108,024,821 (2016: deficiency of $39,757,371). 		
						
The working capital deficiency partially arises because of the requirement under Australian Accounting
Standards to classify Resident Liabilities totalling $80,807,054 (2016: $63,965,127) as a current liability, whereas
the assets to which they relate, Property, Plant & Equipment and Investment Properties are required to be
classified as non-current assets.						
						
Included in Resident Liabilities are Ingoing Contributions totalling $5,972,639 (2016: $5,741,755). When a
retirement village resident relinquishes the unit/apartment they occupied the entity is not required to pay the
resident's exit entitlement (the ingoing contribution less the exit fee) until the unit/apartment has been sold to a
new resident and the new ingoing contribution is received. 						
						
The major portion of Resident Liabilities is accommodation bonds and refundable accommodation deposits
of $74,834,415 (2016: $58,223,372). The timing of the obligation of accommodation bonds and refundable
accommodation deposits will not practically all fall due within the next twelve months. Accommodation bonds
become payable upon the departure of aged care residents. It is unlikely that all residents will depart in the next
twelve months thereby requiring a pay out of the full amount of the liability. Historically, the turnover of the aged
care residents has been approximating 25%-30%.
Furthermore, the entity has $101,322,185 worth of other financial assets recognized as a non-current asset, as
they are not expected to be sold within the next 12 months. Whilst they are not expected to be sold within the
next 12 months and are ultimately held for long term appreciation, if required the entity can call upon these
investments to fund repayments of Accommodation Bond and Entry Contribution liabilities.				
								
After considering all available current information, the directors have concluded that there are reasonable
grounds to believe that the entity will be able to pay its debts as and when they fall due and payable and
preparation of the financial statements on a going concern basis is appropriate.					

Income Tax

					

No provision for income tax has been raised as the company is exempt from income tax under Div 50 of the
Income Tax Assessment Act 1997. 					
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In the process of applying the Company's accounting policies, management has made a number of judgements and
applied estimates for future events. Judgements and estimates which are material to the financial report are found
in the following notes:						
						
Key Estimates — Impairment 					
• Property, plant & equipment - Note 7						
• Investment property - Note 8						
• Intangibles assets - Note 10						
						
Estimation of useful life of assets
					
• Property, plant & equipment - Note 7						
• Investment property - Note 8						
• Intangibles assets - Note 10						
						
Employee benefits provision - Note 13 					
						
Comparative Figures
					
Where required by Accounting Standards comparative figures have been adjusted to conform with changes in
presentation for the current financial year.
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NOTES
N O T E S T O T H E F I N A N C I A L S TAT E M E N T S F O R T H E Y E A R E N D E D 3 0 J U N E 2 0 1 7

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) Basis of Preparation
The financial statements are general purpose financial statements that have been prepared in accordance
with Australian Accounting Standards - Reduced Disclosure Requirements and Interpretations issued by the
Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB), the Aged Care Act 1997 and the Australian Charities and Not-forprofit Commission Act 2012 (ACNC Act 2012). 						
The Australian Accounting Standards include Australian equivalents to International Financial Reporting
Standards. Due to the application of Australian specific provisions for not-for-profits entities contained only
within Australian Accounting Standards, the financial report and notes thereto are not necessarily compliant
with all International Financial Reporting Standards.							
The financial statements, except for cash flow information, have been prepared on an accruals basis and are
based on historical costs, modified, where applicable, by the measurement at fair value of financial assets and
financial liabilities. 						

(b) Adoption of new and revised accounting standards
AASB 2015-2 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Disclosure Initiative: Amendments to AASB 101
This standard requires ‘decluttering’ of financial statements which means only notes that are deemed material
are included and are grouped by operating activity, and only significant accounting policies are disclosed.

(c) Early adoption of standards 					
The Company has early adopted AASB 9 Financial Instruments (AASB 9) in line with its Parent Entity, St Vincent
de Paul Society Queensland.										

(d) Fair values of assets and liabilities						
Fair values may be used for financial asset as liability measurement as well as for sundry disclosures.		
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. It is based on the presumption that the
transaction takes place either in the principal market for the asset or liability or, in the absence of a principal
market, in the most advantageous market. The principal or most advantageous market must be accessible to, or
by, the Company.											
Fair value is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or
liability, assuming that market participants act in their best economic interest. 				
The fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account the market participant's ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset at its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset at its highest and best use.						
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In measuring fair value, the Company uses valuation techniques that maximise the use of observable inputs and
minimise the use of unobservable inputs.									

(e) Investments and other financial assets 						
Accounting policies applied from 1 July 2016						
Classification 						
From 1 July 2016, the company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:		
• those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or through
profit or loss), and						
• those to be measured at amortised cost.						
The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual
terms of the cash flows.						
For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income. For investments in debt instruments, this will depend on the business model in which
the investment is held. For investments in equity instruments, this will depend on whether the company has
made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity investment at fair value
through other comprehensive income.						
The company reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for managing those assets changes.
Measurement

					

At initial recognition, the company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset
not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in
profit or loss.											
Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety when determining whether their
cash flows are solely payment of principal and interest.							
Debt instruments 						
Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the company’s business model for managing the
asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement categories into which the
company classifies its debt instruments:						
• Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. A gain or loss on a debt investment
that is subsequently measured at amortised cost and is not part of a hedging relationship is recognised in
profit or loss when the asset is derecognised or impaired. Interest income from these financial assets is
included in finance income using the effective interest rate method.				
• Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI): Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash
flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal
and interest, are measured at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the
recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are
recognised in profit or loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously
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recognised in OCI is reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognised in other gains/(losses). Interest
income from these financial assets is included in finance income using the effective interest rate method.
• Fair value through profit or loss: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured
at fair value through profit or loss. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at
fair value through profit or loss and is not part of a hedging relationship is recognised in profit or loss and
presented net in the statement of profit or loss within other gains/(losses) in the period in which it arises.
Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance income.						
Equity instruments						
The company subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value. Where the company’s management
has elected to present fair value gains and losses on equity investments in other comprehensive income, there
is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss. Dividends from such investments
continue to be recognised in profit or loss as other income when the company’s right to receive payments is
established.								
Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in other gain/
(losses) in the statement of profit or loss as applicable. Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on
equity investments measured at FVOCI are not reported separately from other changes in fair value.		
Impairment						
The company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets carried
at amortised cost and FVOCI. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk.									
For trade receivables only, the company applies the simplified approach permitted by AASB 9, which requires
expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables.				

(f) Goods and Services Tax

					

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST, except where the amount of GST
incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Tax Office. In these circumstances the GST is recognised as
part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of an item of the expense. Receivables and payables in the
Statement of Financial Position are shown exclusive of GST.						
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2017
$

NOTE 2: REVENUE
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2016
$

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
127,829,059

173,694,083

Residents and clients fees and charges

74,225,389

38,956,021

Other

22,228,401

809,057

224,282,849

213,459,161

12,985

48,373

490,675

532,070

4,953,616

3,892,675

Rent received

359,104

713,973

Bequests and donations

135,056

143,521

88,699

513,031

6,040,135

5,843,643

230,322,984

219,302,804

Government grants and subsidies

NON-OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Capital grants
Accommodation bond retentions
Interest received

Profit on disposal of non-current assets

TOTAL REVENUE
Accounting Policy

		

Government Grants

		

Grant revenue is recognised in profit or loss when the company obtains control of the grant and it is probable
that the economic benefits gained from the grant will flow to the company and the amount of the grant can be
measured reliably. If conditions are attached to the grant which must be satisfied before it is eligible to receive
the contribution, the recognition of the grant as revenue will be deferred until those conditions are satisfied.
Resident and client fees and charges

		

Revenue from resident care fees, service charges and government subsidies is recognised upon delivery of
service to the residents. 					
Accommodation bond retentions and Exit fees

		

Accommodation bond retentions are recognised on a contractual basis and deducted from the Accommodation
Bond liability balance.				
Exit fees on retirement village assets is earned while the resident occupies the independent living unit and is
recognised as income over the residents' expected tenure. The expected tenure is calculated with reference to
Australian Bureau of Statistics current data relating to life expectancy and historical trends of roll-overs within
the company. Exit fee revenue earnt reduces the existing Ingoing Contribution liability.			
Interest income 		
Interest revenue is recognised on a proportional basis taking into account the interest rates applicable to the
financial assets.			
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NOTES

2017
$

2016

RESTATED

$

Profit before income tax has been determined after:
(a)

Expenses
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

18,901,217

16,157,108

Depreciation of investment property buildings

430,593

183,688

Amortisation of property, plant and equipment

799,785

795,936

- audit or review

126,915

79,758

Bad & Doubtful Debts

143,615

12,074

9,424,716

9,922,425

88,699

513,031

Remuneration of Auditor:

Defined contribution superannuation expense
(b)

Revenue and Net Gains
Gain on disposal of non-current assets

NOTE 4: CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash on hand
Cash at bank and on deposit
Cash at bank - Capital Replacement Fund*

2017
$

2016
$

43,872

44,934

15,662,902

37,499,822

307,725

256,092

16,014,499

37,800,848

* Secured and restricted use Capital Replacement Fund accounts established in terms of sections 91 and 92 of
the Retirement Villages Act 1999 which cannot be used by the entity in its ordinary activities.			

Accounting Policy			
Cash and cash equivalent include cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of 3 months or less.			
For the purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash
equivalents as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts. 			
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NOTE 5: CAPITAL EXPENDITURE COMMITMENTS

2017
$

68

2016
$

(a) Capital expenditure commitments:
- Capital expenditure projects contracted for
- Capital expenditure projects planned*

2,257,499

36,000,000

37,968,000

72,000,000

40,225,499

108,000,000

17,257,499

56,000,000

22,968,000

52,000,000

40,225,499

108,000,000

432,173

415,836

572,734

1,190,081

-

-

1,004,907

1,605,917

Payable
- Not longer than one year
- Longer than 1 but not longer than 5 years

(b) Operating lease commitments:
Non-cancellable operating leases contracted for but not recognised in
the financial statements
- Not later than 12 months
- Later than 12 months but not later than 5 years
- Later than 5 years

The property lease commitments are non-cancellable operating leases contracted for but not capitalised in the
financial statements with a five year term. Increases in lease commitments may occur in line with the consumer
price index (CPI).			
			
* Represents contract for expenditure entered into subsequent to year end in relation to the development of an
aged care facility at Toowoomba.			
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NOTE 6: TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

2017
$

2016
$

CURRENT
Trade debtors

1,537,608

1,319,029

Other debtors

1,149,344

2,384,691

TOTAL TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

2,686,952

3,703,720

Accounting policy

		

Loans and receivables

		

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market and are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Gains or losses are recognised in
profit or loss through the amortisation process and when the financial asset is derecognised.			
Trade and other receivables

		

Trade and other receivables are recognised and carried at original invoice amount less an allowance for any
uncollectible amounts. An estimate for doubtful debts is made when collection of the full amount is no longer
probable. Bad debts are written off when identified. 					
(a) Provision for Impairment of Receivables

		

Current trade receivables are generally on 30-day terms. These receivables are assessed for recoverability and a
provision for impairment is recognised when there is objective evidence that a material individual trade
receivable is impaired. 			
(b) Credit Risk — Trade and Other Receivables

		

The company does not have any material credit risk exposure to any single receivable or group of receivables and
has a large and unrelated customer base. The company does not hold any financial assets whose terms have
been renegotiated, but which would otherwise be past due or impaired.			
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2017
$
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2016

RESTATED

$

LAND & BUILDINGS
Freehold land - at cost

71,446,488

62,286,354

Buildings - at cost

197,536,121

203,518,956

(64,033,832)

(67,635,032)

133,502,289

135,883,924

15,989,780

15,928,465

(10,131,974)

(9,332,189)

5,857,806

6,596,276

38,831,984

6,902,131

249,638,567

211,668,685

59,248,572

55,890,837

(41,734,332)

(38,113,506)

17,514,240

17,777,331

267,152,807

229,446,016

Less accumulated depreciation

Leasehold improvements - at cost
Less accumulated amortisation

Work in progress

TOTAL LAND AND BUILDINGS
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Plant and equipment - at cost
Less accumulated depreciation

TOTAL PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
TOTAL PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
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MOVEMENTS IN
CARRYING AMOUNT:
Balance at the beginning
of the year - Restated

LAND AND
BUILDINGS
$
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LEASEHOLD
WORK IN
IMPROVEMENTS PROGRESS
$
$

PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT
$

TOTAL
$

198,170,278

6,596,276

6,902,131

17,777,331

229,446,016

Additions at cost

19,507,971

61,315

31,929,853

13,621,261

65,120,400

Disposals

(1,133,383)

-

-

(8,636,585)

(9,769,968)

Depreciation expense

(11,596,089)

(799,785)

-

(5,247,767)

(17,643,641)

CARRYING AMOUNT
AT END OF YEAR

204,948,777

5,857,806

38,831,984

17,514,240

267,152,807

Accounting Policy			
Freehold Property			
Land, buildings and leasehold property is stated at historic cost less accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Such cost includes the cost of replacing parts that are eligible for capitalisation
when the cost of replacing the parts is incurred. All other repairs and maintenance are recognised in the
statement of comprehensive income as incurred.			
Land is not depreciated. Depreciation on other assets is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated
useful life on in the case of leasehold improvements, the shorter lease term.				
Plant and Equipment

		

Plant and equipment are measured on the cost basis and are therefore carried at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. In the event the carrying amount of plant and equipment
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount, the carrying amount is written down immediately to its
estimated recoverable amount and impairment losses are recognised either in profit or loss or as a revaluation
decrease if the impairment losses relate to a revalued asset. A formal assessment of recoverable amount is
made when impairment indicators are present.			
Plant and equipment that have been contributed at no cost, or for nominal cost, are valued and recognised at
the fair value of the asset at the date it is acquired.			
Depreciation

		

The depreciable amount of all fixed assets, including buildings and capitalised lease assets but excluding
freehold land, is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the asset’s useful life to the company commencing
from the time the asset is held ready for use. Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter of either
the unexpired period of the lease or the estimated useful lives of the improvements. The depreciation rates used
for each class of depreciable assets are:			
Class of Fixed Asset

Depreciation Rate

Buildings &
Leasehold Property

5%

Plant & Equipment

15-33%
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The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period.			
Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying amount. These gains or
losses are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. When revalued assets are sold, amounts
included in the revaluation surplus relating to that asset are transferred to retained earnings.		
Impairment of Assets

		

At each reporting date, management review a number of factors affecting Investment Property, including their
carrying values, to determine if these assets may be impaired. If an impairment indicator exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset, being the higher of the asset’s fair value less costs to sell and ‘value in use’ is compared to
the carrying value. Any excess of the asset’s carrying value over its recoverable amounts is expensed in profit or
loss as an impairment expense. 						
As the future economic benefits of certain Company assets are not primarily dependent on their ability to
generate net cash inflows, and if deprived of the asset, the Company would replace the asset’s remaining future
economic benefits, ‘value in use’ is determined as the depreciated replacement cost of the asset, rather than by
using discounted future cash flows.			
Depreciated replacement cost is defined as the current replacement cost of an asset less, where applicable,
accumulated depreciation calculated on the basis of such cost to reflect the already consumed or expired future
economic benefits of the asset. The current replacement cost of an asset is its cost measured by reference to the
lowest cost at which the assets future economic benefits of that asset could currently be obtained in the normal
course of business.			
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2017
$

2016
$

Freehold land - at cost

840,000

840,000

Buildings - at cost

8,158,631

8,158,631

Less accumulated depreciation

(614,281)

(183,688)

7,544,350

7,974,943

8,384,350

8,814,943

8,814,943

-

-

8,998,631

Depreciation expense

(430,593)

(183,688)

CARRYING AMOUNT AT END OF YEAR

8,384,350

8,814,943

TOTAL INVESTMENT PROPERTY
MOVEMENTS IN CARRYING AMOUNT:
Balance at the beginning of the year
Additions at cost

Accounting Policy						
Retirement living community assets are classified as investment properties as they are held to earn revenues
and capital appreciation over the long-term. These assets are comprised of independent living units, common
facilities and integral plant and equipment.			
Investments property is measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, including
transaction costs. The buildings component are depreciated over a useful life of 20 years.			
Transfers to and from investment properties to property, plant and equipment are determined by a change
in use of owner occupation. The existing carrying amount of property, plant and equipment is used for the
subsequent accounting cost of investment properties on date of change of use.			
Any gain or loss on disposal of investment property (calculated as the difference between the net proceeds from
disposal and the carrying amount of the item) is recognised in profit or loss.			

Impairment of Assets			

						

At each reporting date, management review a number of factors affecting investment property, including their
carrying values, to determine if these assets may be impaired. If an impairment indicator exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset, being the higher of the asset’s fair value less costs to sell and ‘value in use’ is compared to
the carrying value. Any excess of the asset’s carrying value over its recoverable amounts is expensed in profit or
loss as an impairment expense. 			
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2017
$

NOTE 9: FINANCIAL ASSETS
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2016
$

CURRENT
Financial assets at amortised cost:
Bank fixed rate term deposits

5,000,000

26,971,000

5,000,000

26,971,000

101,322,184

54,853,083

101,322,184

54,853,083

NON-CURRENT
Fair value through other comprehensive income:
Fixed and floating interest rate notes

Accounting Policy						
Classification of financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

		

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income comprise:		
• equity securities which are not held for trading, and for which the company has made an irrevocable election
at initial recognition to recognise changes in fair value through OCI rather than profit or loss, and		
• debt securities where the contractual cash flows are solely principal and interest and the objective of the
company’s business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets.
Upon disposal of these equity investments, any balance within the OCI reserve for these equity investments is
reclassified to retained earnings and is not reclassified to profit or loss.			
Classification of financial assets at amortised cost

				

The company classifies its financial assets as at amortised cost only if both of the following criteria are met:
• the asset is held within a business model with the objective of collecting the contractual cash flows, and
• the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal outstanding.			
			
Fair value
(i) Recurring fair value measurements
Fair value through other comprehensive income:
Bank issued fixed rate notes

101,322,184

54,853,083

(ii) Valuation techniques used to determine fair values
		
Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include:			
- the use of quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments			
- the fair value of the remaining financial instruments is determined using discounted cash flow analysis.		
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NOTE 10: INTANGIBLE ASSETS

2017
$

2016
$

Aged Care Bed Licences

35,851,268

35,851,268

854,261

2,830,776

36,705,529

38,682,044

Software

TOTAL INTANGIBLE ASSETS

MOVEMENTS IN CARRYING AMOUNT:

BED LICENSES

SOFTWARE

TOTAL

35,851,268

2,830,776

38,682,044

Additions

-

80,846

80,846

Disposals

-

Amortisation charge

-

(2,057,361)

(2,057,361)

35,851,268

854,261

36,705,529

Opening Balance

CARRYING AMOUNT AT END OF YEAR

-

Aged Care Bed licenses
Aged Care Bed Licences are recorded at cost or at deemed cost at time of grant from the Australian Government
Department of Health. Provided Ozcare complies with Department of Health requirements, Aged Care Bed
Licences have an indefinite life and accordingly they are not amortised.					

Software – internal management systems
Software licenses used in internal management systems, whether acquired or internally developed are stated at
cost less amortization. They are amortised on a straight line basis over the useful life of 5 years.		

Impairment
Indefinite life intangible assets (Bed licenses) are tested for impairment annually or more frequently if events or
circumstances indicate that it might be impaired and is carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
The company assesses impairment of non-financial assets other than goodwill and other indefinite life intangible
assets at each reporting date by evaluating conditions specific to the company and to the particular asset that
may lead to impairment. If an impairment trigger exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is determined.
This involves fair value less costs of disposal or value-in-use calculations, which incorporate a number of key
estimates and assumptions.				
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2017
$

76

2016
$

CURRENT
Trade Creditors

4,407,780

3,764,768

Sundry Creditors

7,516,552

6,769,299

CDC Client Funds Held*

9,114,806

6,474,468

32,985

37,014

21,072,123

17,045,549

Deposits Held

TOTAL TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Accounting Policy
These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the company prior to the end of financial
year which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of recognition. Trade and
other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting
period. They are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.			
*Client funds held are included in Cash at bank and on deposit.
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NOTES

2017
$

2016
$

CURRENT
Unsecured Liabilities
Subsidies in advance - operational

12,829,761

11,847,871

TOTAL CURRENT

12,829,761

11,847,871

205,174

533,631

703,931

703,931

909,105

1,237,562

1,199,713

1,199,713

1,410,713

1,410,713

2,610,426

2,610,426

3,519,531

3,847,988

NON-CURRENT
Unsecured Liabilities
Subsidy advance - operational
Grants in advance - capital

13 (a)

Secured Liabilities
Grants in advance - capital

13 (a)

Grants in advance - capital

13 (b)

TOTAL NON-CURRENT

13 (a) The Queensland Department of Health (QH) has provided funding to purchase two properties to be used
for programs funded by QH. The loans are secured by Registered First Mortgages over the properties acquired
and Capital Funding Agreements. 				
13 (b) The Queensland Department of Housing has provided funding to assist with the renovation of a building
used for a supported accommodation service. The Queensland Department of Housing retains an interest in the
building secured by a Registered First Mortgage over the property.				

Accounting Policy			
Grants are principally of a recurrent or capital nature and intended to fund ongoing operations or asset
acquisitions. 			
Grants received on the condition that specified services are delivered, or conditions are fulfilled, are considered
reciprocal. Such grants are initially recognised as a liability and revenue is recognised as services are performed or
conditions fulfilled. Revenue from non-reciprocal grants is recognised when the entity obtains control of the funds.
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2017
$

NOTE 13: EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
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2016

RESTATED

$

CURRENT
Annual leave

12,130,413

12,235,222

Long service leave

6,597,421

4,235,830

18,727,834

16,471,052

4,686,993

6,632,424

4,686,993

6,632,424

NON-CURRENT
Long service leave

Accounting Policy
Short-term employee benefits

		

Short-term employee benefits are benefits, other than termination benefits, that are expected to be settled
wholly within twelve (12) months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service.
Examples of such benefits include wages and salaries and non-monetary benefits. Short-term employee benefits
are measured at the undiscounted amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled.		
Other long-term employee benefits

		

The Company’s liabilities for long service leave are included in other long-term benefits as they are not expected to
be settled wholly within twelve (12) months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related
service. They are measured at the present value of the expected future payments to be made to employees.
The expected future payments incorporate anticipated future wage and salary levels, experience of employee
departures and periods of service, and are discounted at rates determined by reference to market yields at the
end of the reporting period on high quality corporate bonds that have maturity dates that approximate the timing
of the estimated future cash outflows. Any re-measurements arising from experience adjustments and changes in
assumptions are recognised in profit or loss in the periods in which the changes occur.			
The Company presents employee benefit obligations as current liabilities in the statement of financial position if
the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement for at least twelve (12) months after the
reporting period, irrespective of when the actual settlement is expected to take place.			
Estimates			
The liability for long service leave is recognised and measured at the present value of the estimated future cash
flows to be made in respect of all employees at the reporting date. In determining the present value of the liability,
estimates of attrition rates and pay increases through promotion and inflation have been taken into account.
The following are considered when measuring the annual leave provision:			
• Company policy that employees are required to use their annual leave in the year it is earned. 		
• Employees of the company are paid under employment agreements that are current for up to 3 years with all
pay increases agreed in advance and documented.			
• Increases as noted above are processed on 1 July each year and leave provisions are adjusted accordingly with
the resultant expense carried through to the profit and loss at that time.
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2017
$

2016
$

CURRENT
Unsecured liabilities
Accommodation bonds and Refundable Accommodations Deposits
Ingoing contributions

74,834,415

58,223,372

5,972,639

5,741,755

80,807,054

63,965,127

Accounting Policy
Accommodation bonds 		
An accommodation bond as governed by the Aged Care Act 1997 is an amount of money payable for entry to
Ozcare by residents who enter permanent care at a low level care, if they are eligible to pay. It is in addition to
the standard resident contribution and any income tested fee that may apply to the resident. Accommodation
bonds are recognised as a liability net of retentions receivable. 				
Refundable accommodation deposits

		

A refundable accommodation deposit (RAD), as governed by the Aged Care Act 1997, is an amount of money
payable for entry to Ozcare by any resident who, in terms of a Commonwealth asset and income assessment, is
eligible to pay. It is in addition to the standard resident contribution and any means tested care fee that may apply
to the resident. RADs are recognised as a liability only upon receipt of the deposit. Residents can choose to pay
a RAD as a lump sum, a daily accommodation payment, or a combination of both. The service provider must, if
instructed by the care recipient, deduct from the RAD (whether fully or partly paid), the daily accommodation
payment and may, in its sole discretion and upon receiving a request from the care recipient, agree to the
deduction from the RAD of any other amount. Any deductions from the RAD bear interest at the maximum
permissible interest rate as set by the Commonwealth Government. The balance of the RAD is refunded to the
resident, or their estate, on departure. Service providers may also retain any interest they derive from RADs. No
interest is payable to the resident. RADs are refundable within a maximum of 14 days of departure of the resident
or, in the case of decease, within 14 days of the receipt of probate.					
Ingoing Contributions		
Retirement village residents pay an ingoing contribution to the entity in exchange for the exclusive use of an
independent living unit. Ingoing Contributions are refundable to a departed resident following sale of the respective
unit and receipt of an ingoing contribution from the new resident. Ingoing contribution liability is recorded net of
exit fees receivable.			
Current classification
Accommodation Bonds, RADS and Ingoing Contributions are classified as current liabilities in the statement of
financial position. Based on historical trends and experience it is likely that the majority of the liability recognised
will not be payable within 12 months, however there is no unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for
more than 12 months and, therefore, the liability is recognised as current in its entirety.			
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NOTE 15: KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL COMPENSATION

2017
$

2016
$

Total remuneration paid to key management personnel
of the company during the year

1,624,954

3,090,499

NOTE 16: RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Any transactions between related parties are on normal commercial terms and conditions no more favourable
than those available to other persons unless otherwise stated.

NOTE 17: CASH FLOW INFORMATION

2016

(a) Reconciliation of profit after income tax to net cash inflow from
operating activities

2017
$

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

15,019,657

5,566,814

Accommodation bond retentions and exit fees

(490,675)

(532,070)

Depreciation and amortisation

20,131,595

17,136,732

(88,699)

(513,031)

Decrease/(increase) in trade and other debtors

1,016,768

1,109,566

Decrease/(increase) in prepayments

(613,840)

86,136

Increase/(decrease) in trade and sundry creditors

4,026,574

4,261,215

311,351

209,965

653,433

4,538,847

39,966,164

31,864,174

8,759,172

10,226,078

490,675

532,070

RESTATED

$

NON CASH FLOWS IN PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Loss/(profit) on disposal of non-current assets

CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Increase/(decrease) in employee benefits provisions
Increase/(decrease) in grants received in advance

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
(b) Non-cash investing and financing activities
Trade-in of motor vehicles during the year (proceeds equals trade in value)

Accommodation retentions and exit fees reducing resident liabilities
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NOTE 18: FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
The company’s financial instruments consist mainly of deposits with banks, local money market instruments,
short-term investments, accounts receivable and payable, bank bills, accommodation bonds, and Ingoing
Contributions. The totals for each category of financial instruments, measured in accordance with AASB 9 are
detailed below:			

2017
$

2016
$

FINANCIAL ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents

16,014,499

64,771,848

Trade and other receivables

2,686,952

3,703,720

Financial assets a fair value through other
comprehensive income

101,322,184

54,853,083

Financial assets at amortised cost

5,000,000

26,971,000

125,023,635

150,299,651

21,072,123

17,045,549

- Resident loans

80,807,054

63,965,127

TOTAL FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

101,879,177

81,010,676

TOTAL FINANCIAL ASSETS
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Financial liabilities at amortised cost:
- Trade and other payables

The Board of Directors and Senior Management are responsible for monitoring and managing financial risks. Senior
Management regularly review investments and borrowings and seek advice from an independent investment
research and advisory firm. The Board reviews investments at each meeting and receives a quarterly portfolio
report from the independent investment research and advisory firm.			
The company does not have any derivative instruments at 30 June 2017 (2016 nil).			
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NOTE 19: ECONOMIC DEPENDENCE
Ozcare’s continued operation is dependent on retaining bed licences and ongoing Government subsidies which
are subject to regular contractual reviews and/or accreditation requirements.		

NOTE 20: CONTINGENCIES
Contingencies relate to the outcome of future events and may result in an asset or liability, however due to current
uncertainty do not qualify for recognition.
At reporting date, there are not contingent assets or contingent liabilities.

NOTE 21: EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
Subsequent to year end, Ozcare entered into a contract to construct an Aged Care Facility in Toowoomba. Refer to
note 5 for contracted expenditure amount.							
No other matters or circumstances have arisen since the end of the financial year which significantly affected or
may significantly affect the operations of the company, the results of those operations, or the state of affairs of the
company in future financial years.							
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TO OUR SUPPORTERS WHO MAKE CARING
FOR OUR COMMUNITY POSSIBLE

Ozcare is a not-for profit organisation committed to; helping seniors and people with disability stay in their
own homes as long as possible, helping the disadvantaged get back on their feet, providing respite services
to carers looking after loved ones, and to offering homely aged care facilities to our oldest Australians.
Our wide range of services are made possible by state and federal government funding and the generosity
of individuals, community groups and corporates.

Donations & Bequests
A heartfelt thank you to the individuals, community groups and corporates who chose to support Ozcare
this year. Your kindness directly benefits the people we support with 100% of every donation and bequest
going directly to the service specified, there are no administration charges.

Quality Statement
Ozcare is a quality certified organisation and has met the requirements of the International Standards
Organisation (ISO 9001:2008).

Funding Acknowledgements
Ozcare’s wide range of services are made possible by funding from a diverse range of programs from the
Australian and Queensland governments.
Australian Government
• Department of Health
• Department of Social Services
• Department of Veteran Affairs

Queensland Government
• Department of Housing and Public Works
• Department of Communities, Child Safety and Disability Services
• Queensland Health
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Seniors Week Celebrations at Parkwood Gardens DRC

In Closing
Thank you to our wonderful clients for sharing
their personal stories with us. It is inspiring to
witness that in the face of adversity, with the right
support, personal goals can be achieved and
people can rediscover meaning and purpose.

Thank you to our staff and services for helping
us put this report together. Your big hearts make
a big difference every day!

Corporate Office
66 River Terrace, Kangaroo Point Q 4169
PO Box 912 Fortitude Valley Q 4006
p: 1800 Ozcare (1800 692 273)
f: (07) 3028 9199

www.ozcare.org.au
ABN: 58 072 422 925

Ozcare's wide range of services to support
Queenslanders are made possible by funding
from a diverse range of programs from the
Australian and Queensland Governments.

A Special Work of
St Vincent de Paul Society Queensland

Ozcare is a quality certified organisation and
has met the requirements of the International
Standards Organisation (ISO 9001:2008)

